o
www.TeleEye.com 9
Stock Code B{AX3E : 8051 /

2 00 8 C) ANNUAL REPORT £

 TeleEye Holdings Limited
F £ HE ERBREAL I

\\

(Incorporated i th e Cayman Islands with limited liability)
. (RE=E E?%?FH}EZ;Z/EAT .



W IG5 22 5 B A PR W) (T 22 B 1) A SEAR (TRISEMR ) Z 454

A SEAR 2 35 A o B R BR 2 2w PR B i 2 g o Ju S AR A SR b iz 4y R R O A v R R > I B TR R i A o
BEAh > FEAISEAR bl 2 2 ) AT R R MR S i A A W R SR 2 AT SRR R T A BB o AR E 2 AL TR R
% 50N T Z YA TR B > A T I G % AR O AR B R o A SN 2 o v R B B Lt AR 5 R s ) S AR B S RS
To S Al RSB0 M R B

H A A SEAR T 2 2 RS R MR > A A SEAR BTl S T A R AR B R R S K 2 i e B L o [ e A
BRBEAMEREEZBEFTARMBERZ TS -

A SE MR AT 2 R 2 22 B Ty 3 R A W A8 P R A SEAR T W 2 EL G A A T B o b i A mD U 2 A R R R S T P B A AR A
PR EORE P > A BB 2 N M R S R B BT A SEAR A > DA A SEAR BB AT N Z BB R

Tt 38 Py 8 AR R 7 2 A 2 BEAN B ET B P g B IR A AT (T EE Y - Sl T A A B LA A R A 4 S EAT A B 97 1A
BT A B A IR % S A 2 T 5] B AT ] 18 AR I A ] BT AT -

AR A B LT IR CRYAE R 25 L TIT A & WEE T2 LA B T 3 IR FER A R 2 7l & A o T 3 IR IR A R 2 7] #5 3
G AR A E[F] T (] JA) AR A5 2 e ST AE - AL AE A — D) 5 BB Al 8 BE 0 PR R AT () AR BT 5 X
77 [H] 74 Jig Y i K 5T B H R 2 5 ()0 TR IR A 7 i B AR A PG Y g AR R R (i) AR R A A R
& V)BT RS A S Oy A (F i Gl P2 P B R RO IR

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may be
attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation to forecast
future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the
business sectors or countries in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks
of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater
risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the internet website operated by the Stock
Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly,
prospective investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information
on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of TELEEYE HOLDINGS LIMITED collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM for the purpose of giving information with
regard to TELEEYE HOLDINGS LIMITED. The directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief: (i) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading;
(ii) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and (iii) all opinions
expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair
and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT  FJ##¥&

I am delighted to report another outstanding year for TeleEye. The
Group’s turnover increased by 35% to HK$62.9 million while basic

earnings per share grew by 91% to HK$2.22 cents.

Our unique video compression technology SMAC-M was well
received in the video surveillance market. The multi-stream technology
enables our RX video servers to have excellent video recording and
optimal video transmission through internet and mobile network at the
same time. The superior technology is one of the main driving forces

for our strong growth.

The Group continued to strengthen our brand position and
distribution network globally. Our sales grew substantially in Middle
East, Africa and South Asia where the TeleEye brand was gaining
market recognition rapidly. We have spent considerable effort in

providing technical and sales support to our sales channels.

Looking forward, we are fully aware of the major economic
downturn in developed countries and the challenges facing us. In the
coming year, we will focus on improving productivity and quality while

maintaining considerable R&D effort for new products.

Year 2009 marks the 15th Anniversary for the Group. With our
dedicated staff, T am confident that we will continue to grow our
business. On behalf of the Board of directors, I would like to express
our thanks to all staff and business partners for their dedication and

contribution to the Group.

Prof. Chan Chok Ki
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 12 September, 2008
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 30 June 2008, the Group recorded a turnover
of approximately HK$62,898,000, representing an increase of about
34.9% as compared with a turnover of approximately HK$46,635,000
of the preceding year. Profit attributable to shareholders for the year
ended 30 June 2008 amounted to approximately HK$3,997,000 (2007:
HK$2,087,000). Basic earnings per share for the year ended 30 June
2008 was HK$2.22 cents (2007: HK$1.16 cents).

As a result of the Group’s business expansion, overall operating
costs had increased by approximately 28.6% to HK$25,847,000 as
compared to HK$20,101,000 for the year ended 30 June 2007. However,
the Group’s balance sheet remains strong with substantial liquidity.
The growth reflects the Group’s effort in the development of advanced
video surveillance products and the building up of the TeleEye brand

worldwide.

COMMENTS ON SEGMENT INFORMATION
Europe

Europe was the largest market of the Group, whose turnover for the
year ended 30 June 2008 amounted to approximately HK$19,791,000
(2007: HK$16,662,000) or 31.4% (2007: 35.7%) of the Group’s
turnover. TeleEye Europe Limited (a subsidiary in the UK) operates
as a direct selling office commencing from April 2004. It contributed
significant effort in the provision of technical and marketing support
in the region. Segment result was approximately HK$3,137,000 (2007:
HK$3,671,000).

Hong Kong

Turnover for the year ended 30 June 2008 amounted to
approximately HK$7,528,000 (2007: HK$6,077,000) or 12% (2007:
13%) of the Group’s turnover. Segment result was approximately

HK$1,797,000 (2007: HK$793,000).

Other Asian Countries

Turnover for other Asian countries, excluding Hong Kong &
Singapore, for the year ended 30 June 2008 amounted to approximately
HK$9,793,000 (2007: HK$5,616,000) or 15.6% (2007: 12%) of the
Group’s turnover. Segment result was approximately HK$1,742,000
(2007: HK$573,000).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Africa

Turnover for Africa for the year ended 30 June 2008 increased
by 82% to approximately HK$9,678,000 (2007: HK$5,318,000). It
accounted for 15.4% (2007: 11.4%) of the Group’s turnover. The
increase in turnover was due to the increasing marketing efforts applied
in the region. Segment result increased to approximately HK$3,791,000
(2007: HK$1,670,000).

Singapore

The turnover for Singapore for the year ended 30 June 2008 was
approximately HK$4,729,000 (2007: HK$5,108,000) or 7.5% (2007:
11%) of the Group’s turnover. The segment reported a result of

approximately HK$474,000 (2007: HK$702,000).

Middle East

Turnover for Middle East for the year ended 30 June 2008 increased
significantly to approximately HK$9,397,000 (2007: HK$4,976,000) or
14.9% (2007: 10.7%) of the Group’s turnover. The segment reported a
result of approximately HK$3,375,000 (2007:HK$1,600,000).

Others

Other geographical segments included the Americas and Australia.
Turnover for the year ended 30 June 2008 dropped to approximately
HK$1,982,000 (2007: HK$2,878,000) or 3.2% (2007: 6.2%) of the
Group’s total turnover. The segment reported a result of approximately

HK$454,000 (2007: HK$1,012,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in research and development and
sales and marketing of video surveillance systems. For the financial
year ended 30 June 2008, the Group succeeded in achieving growth
and profitability in the highly competitive CCTV market. This reflected
management’s effort of providing a wide range of high-tech products
and customer services to the market, and the optimisation of the
Group’s operational efficiency in a competitive environment. During
the year, the Group continued to conduct seminars and exhibitions
in various countries with a view to enhance TeleEye brand image

worldwide.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Product Development
During the year, the Group has launched a range of NX series

network video cameras and video servers. It consists of:

e NX301 single channel network video server
e NX288 IR vandal resistance network dome

e NX173 outdoor vandal resistant network dome

Powered by SMAC-M multi-stream video compression technology,
TeleEye NX provides optimal remote surveillance through Internet,
PSTN and mobile communications. The new NX series makes IP &
mobile surveillance a reality. By connecting TeleEye NX301 to a mobile
data modem, user can get live video via HSDPA, UMTS, EDGE or GPRS

from anywhere.

The Group also launched several high end video cameras such as
Weather Proof Day/Night IR camera, TeleEye SF399, and IR Vandal
Resistant Dome Camera, TeleEye DF288. The features of new products
include “DAY/NIGHT” integrated camera, built-in Aspherical Varifocal
IR lens, auto-switching IR-cut filter, wider range of IR LEDs and higher

ultra horizontal resolution.

Earlier in the year, the Group also introduced a range of entry level
products TeleEye RN680 Series Digital Video Recorders. TeleEye
RN680 provides powerful video surveillance with simple installation
and configuration. Its built-in CD writer and USB interface facilitate
fast and easy video footage extraction onto a CD-ROM or USB flash

drive for evidential purpose.

The Award

In Oct 2007, TeleEye RX504 Mobile Video Recording Server has
won the Gold Award (Security Category) in the Hong Kong Electronic
Industries Association (HKEIA) Award for Outstanding Innovation
and Technology Products during the Hong Kong Electronic Fair 2007,
the largest electronic exhibitions in Asia and the second largest in the
world. The Group has been selected in the last consecutive 5 years as

the Gold Award winner by HKEIA.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In January 2008, the Group also won the 2007 Hong Kong Top
Brand Award from the Hong Kong Brand Development Council and
the Chinese Manufacturer’s Association. The Award aims to give
recognition to outstanding brand names established by Hong Kong
companies. This latest honour comes after the Gold Award (Security
Category) by TeleEye Mobile Surveillance System in the HKEIA Award
for Outstanding Innovation and Technology Products 2007. The
recognition reaffirms that TeleEye is not only the outstanding brand
in the world’s market, but also the most popular CCTV surveillance
system, which has received widespread acceptance in Hong Kong. This

award encourages us to step up our efforts even further.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The global economic slow down may affect the Group’s business
worldwide in the coming year. The Group will however maintain its
effort in developing innovative and quality products and expanding its
markets. The management continues to take a conservative approach as
cost control and steadily improving operation efficiency. With its strong
financial position, the Group will be able to withstand the impact of

the economic slowdown.

DIVIDENDS
The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2008 (2007: Nil).

EMPLOYEES

As at 30 June 2008, the Group employed 39 (2007: 36) full time
employees in Hong Kong and 19 (2007: 16) full time employees in the
PRC and overseas offices. The Group’s staff costs, including Directors’
emoluments, employees’ salaries and retirement benefits scheme
contribution amounted to approximately HK$15,666,000 (2007:
HK$13,194,000).

Employees are remunerated in accordance with individual’s
responsibility and performance and remains competitive with the
prevailing market rates. Other fringe benefits such as medical
insurance, retirement benefit scheme and discretionary bonus are

offered to all employees.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING RATIO
As at 30 June 2008, non-interest bearing loans were outstanding to
minority shareholders. The loans were to finance the operation of some

of the Group’s subsidiaries and were repayable on demand.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Other than the above, the Group mainly used its internal resources
to finance its operations during the year. The Group has available
banking facilities of HK$5 million from Hang Seng Bank and none
of them had been utilized as at 30 June 2008 (30 June 2007: Nil).
Consequently, the Group’s gearing ratio, as a percentage of bank and
other borrowings and long-term debt over total assets, as at 30 June

2008 was approximately 3% (30 June 2007: 1%).

The Group had bank balances, deposits and cash of approximately
HK$17,962,000 as at 30 June 2008 (30 June 2007: HK$11,726,000).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
The Group did not make any significant new investment during the

year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

In December 2007, the Group had disposed of an associate engaged
in sales and marketing of audio and video monitoring systems in Japan
for a cash consideration of JPY294 equivalent to approximately HK$21.
Save as aforesaid, the Group did not make any material acquisitions

and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies in this year.

CHARGE ON ASSETS
As at 30 June 2008, the Group did not have any charge on its assets

(30 June 2007: Nil).

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS
Up to the current moment, the Group does not have any plan for

material investments or capital assets.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES AND
RELATED HEDGES

During the year under review, the Group’s transactions were
substantially denominated in either Hong Kong, US dollars and British
Pounds. Since the Hong Kong dollars are pegged to the US dollars, the
Board considers that the potential foreign exchange exposure of the
Group is limited. During the year under review, the Group did not use

any financial instruments for hedging purposes (30 June 2007: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 June 2008, the Group did not have any contingent

liabilities (30 June 2007: Nil).
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Cliff C K CHAN, aged 53, is the founder and Chief
Executive Officer of TeleEye Holdings Limited and an adjunct professor
of The City University of Hong Kong (“City University”). TeleEye
Group was Hong Kong’s first university spin-off company to become
a public listed company. Prior to managing the Group on a full-time
basis in 2001, Prof. Chan had lectured at the City University for fifteen
years. He has published extensively in signal and image processing
fields and has received numerous awards including the IEEE Third
Millennium Award in 2000. In 1996, the EDN ASIA Magazine also
named him an “EDN ASIA Innovator” for his contributions in image
compression research. TeleEye Group has also won numerous awards
in product innovation and business areas including the Gold Award
(Security Category) 2007 by HKEIA and the 2007 Hong Kong Top
Brand Award from the Hong Kong Brand Development Council and the
Chinese Manufacturer’s Association. Prof. Chan currently also serves
as the Chairman of Industry and Technology Committee of the Hong

Kong General Chamber of Commerce.

Dr. Ma Chi Kit, aged 40, is a founder and the Chief Marketing
Officer of the Group. He has extensive knowledge on digital signal
processing and telecommunications technologies. He is presently
responsible for formulation and implementation of marketing strategies,
product pricing and positioning, and strategic management of channel

distribution for the Group.

Dr. Ma obtained his bachelor’s degree with first class honours and a

PhD degree in electronic engineering from the City University.

Mr. Ho Ka Ho, aged 36, is a founder and the Engineering Director
of the Group. He is in charge of the engineering department of the
Group and is responsible for product design, quality control, research
and development of the Group. Mr. Ho has expertise in computer

architecture, software engineering and digital signal processing.
Mr. Ho obtained his bachelor of engineering degree in computer

engineering with first class honours and master of science degree in

electronic engineering from the City University.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat, aged 50, is a founder and a research and
development consultant of the Group, responsible for spearheading the
research and development team on a part-time basis with particular
focus on product design and development. Dr. C.E Chan is a research
veteran in the digital signal processing and speech compression

technology.

Dr. C.E Chan is presently an associate professor of the Department
of Electronic Engineering at the City University. He is also a Director of
Signal Communications Holdings Limited and Signal Communications

Limited, both are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

In 1998, he was named “EDN Asia Innovator” by the EDN Asia

Magazine for his contribution in speech compression technology.

He received all his bachelor, master and PhD degrees in electronic

engineering from The University of Essex, England.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Siu Wan Chi, aged 58, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director who was appointed in September 2000. He is presently Chair
Professor of the Department of Electronic and Information Engineering
and Director of the Centre for Signal Processing, The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He was the Head of the same department and

Dean of Engineering Faculty between 1994 and 2002.

Prof. Siu has held numerous public offices in the academic field
including member of editorial board of renowned journals in the U.S.
and the PRC, general chair of world-class international conferences,
and chairman of academic/professional assessment panels. Prof. Siu
obtained his master of philosophy degree from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong, and the PhD degree from Imperial College of Science,
Technology and Medicine, University of London, UK.

Mr. Yu Hon To, David, aged 60, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company who was appointed in January 2007. Mr. Yu
is a founder and Director of MCL Capital Limited (formerly known as
Management Capital Limited), a Hong Kong-based financial advisory
and direct investment firm. He also sits on the boards of several
other listed and private companies in Hong Kong. He was formerly a
partner of an international accounting firm with extensive experience
in corporate finance. Mr. Yu is a fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an associate member

of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Professor Ching Pak Chung, aged 54, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director who was appointed in October 2004. Prof. Ching is
presently Pro-Vice-Chancellor and Director of the Shun Hing Institute
of Advanced Engineering of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
(“CUHK”). He was elected Dean of Engineering from 1998 till end of
2003. Prof. Ching pursued his studies at the University of Liverpool of
United Kingdom. He received his bachelor’s degree (first class honors)
and doctoral degree in 1977 and 1981 respectively. Then, he continued
his research at School of Electrical Engineering of the University of
Bath and was back to Hong Kong in 1982, when he started teaching
at the Department of Electronic Engineering of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. In 1984, Prof. Ching joined the Department of
Electronic Engineering of CUHK and was promoted to Chair Professor

in 1999.

Prof. Ching has all along participated actively in various
professional activities. Besides serving in different capacities for the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers (HKIE), and the Institute of
Electrical and Electronic Engineers (IEEE), he was an elected Council
Member of the Institution of Electrical Engineers (IEE) between 2002
and 2005. Prof. Ching also devotes his time on public services. He
was a member of the Consumer Council, Chairman of the Hong Kong
Accreditation Advisory Board and a member of the Electricity Safety
Advisory Committee. He is currently member of the Hong Kong Quality
Assurance Agency Governing Council, Panel Member of the Research
Grants Council of Hong Kong SAR, and member of the Copyright
Tribunal.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices set out in Appendix
15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Code”) takes effect from 1
January 2005. Except for the deviations as disclosed on this report,
the Company has complied with the Code by establishing a formal
and transparent procedures to protect and maximize the interests of

shareholders throughout the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed they have complied with the required standard of dealings
and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors

for the year ended 30 June 2008.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors, one Non-
Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each Director are set out
on the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” of

this annual report.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall strategic
development of the Group. It also monitors the financial performance
and internal control of the Group’s business operations. Executive
Directors are responsible for running the Group and executing the
strategies adopted by the Board. The Board delegates day-to-day
activities to the management with department heads responsible for
different aspects of the business. Management is required to present an
annual budget and any proposal for major investments and changes in

business strategies for the Board’s approval.

The Non-Executive Directors serve the relevant function of
bringing independent judgement on the development, performance
and risk management of the Group through their contributions in
board meetings. They are also serving on Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee. Through their active participation, they
provide their valuable skills, expertise and experience to the Board and
the Committees on which they serve so that the management process

can be critically reviewed and controlled.
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In compliance with rule 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three Independent Non-Executive
Directors and at least one of them has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are

independent.

The Board meets at least four times a year to review the financial
and operating performance of the Company. There were four regular
board meetings held in the financial year ended 30 June 2008. Details

of the attendance of the Board are as follows:

By sF CAIZEMR LT RLRDD 585,05 (1) B () 1% >
ARNFEBIE =B L FEPATHES » HE PR
b N H A A 9 0 S 28 i ol g w sl B B
FEHER - AXNFAC WA B ERITES
MR B AN AR L 7T KB 555,001 1Y KL e 35 B A
I 8 S M B AR R R o AN )RR B T A ST
PR R R AN

W RS A B 2D DU R A
2 E B R R R B e W R FEINENA
= Lk o A R LB AT IO CE e e
AEEE G LW FEHOT

Attended/Eligible to attend

Name of Director WA WE AR

Executive Directors HWiTHES

Prof. Chan Chok Ki BRAESEBd% 4/4
(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (L RAT A

Dr. Ma Chi Kit G A 4/4

Mr. Ho Ka Ho RS E 4/4

Non-Executive Director FEPATEF

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat PR 3 L 4/4

Independent Non-Executive Directors WL AT S

Prof. Siu Wan Chi i RIEBAR 4/4

Prof. Ching Pak Chung AR AR 3/4

Mr. Yu Hon To, David AT S 3/4

During the regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss and
formulate the overall strategies of the Company, review and monitor
the business and financial performances and discuss the quarterly,
half-yearly and annual results, as well as discuss and decide on other
significant matters. The company secretary records the proceedings of
each Board meeting by keeping minutes, including the record of all
decisions by the Board together with concerns raised and dissenting
views expressed (if any). Draft of Board minutes are circulated to all
Directors for comment and approval as soon as practicable after the
meeting. All minutes are open for inspection at any reasonable time on

request by any Director.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1. stipulates that the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be clearly

established and set out in writing.

At present, Professor Chan Chok Ki is both the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company who is responsible for managing
the Board and the Group’s business. Professor Chan has been both
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since its
incorporation. The Board considers that Professor Chan has in-depth
knowledge in the Group’s business and can make appropriate decisions
promptly and efficiently. The combination of the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer can effectively formulate and implement
the Group’s strategies. The Board also consider that this structure will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and
the management of the Company as the Board of Directors, which
comprises experienced and high caliber individuals, meets regularly
to discuss issues affecting the operations of the Group. The Group
considered that, at its present size, there is no imminent need to

segregate the role of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

Non-Executive Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-Executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Code
Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a causal
vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after their appointment, and every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by

rotation at least once every three years.

At present, the Independent Non-Executive Directors are not
appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association. In addition, not every Director is subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. Directors are subject to rotation
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company (that
at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not greater than one-third, shall retire from office) provided that
notwithstanding anything therein, the Chairman of the Board and/or
the managing Director of the Company shall not, whilst holding such
office, be subject to retirement by rotation or be taken into account
in determining the number of Directors to retire in each year. As

such, with the exception of the Chairman, all Directors are subject to
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retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association. The Board considers that the continuity of office of the
Chairman provides the Group a strong and consistent leadership and is
of great importance to the smooth operations of the Group. Therefore,
for stability reasons, there is no imminent need to amend the Articles

of Association of the Company.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

No Nomination Committee was established by the Company.

The Board is mainly responsible for identifying suitable
candidates for members of the Board when there is a vacancy or any
additional Director is considered necessary. The Board will review the
qualifications of the relevant candidate for determining the suitability
to the Group on the basis of his qualifications, experience and

background.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is supported
by two Board Committees. Each Committee has its defined scope
of duties and terms of reference and the Committee members are
empowered to make decisions on matters within the terms of reference

of each Committee.

(1) Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written
terms of reference based upon the guidelines recommended by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the mandatory

provisions set out in the Code.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the
Company’s annual report and financial statements, quarterly reports and
half-yearly report and to provide advice and comment thereon to the
Board of Directors. The Audit Committee will also be responsible for
reviewing and supervising the financial reporting and internal control
procedures of the Group. The Audit Committee has four members
comprising the three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely
Professor Ching Pak Chung, Professor Siu Wan Chi and Mr. Yu Hon To,
David and one Non-Executive Director, namely Dr. Chan Cheung Fat.

Mr. Yu Hon To, David, is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results for the year
ended 30 June 2008 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. It
has also reviewed the audited financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2008 with management and the Company’s external auditors
and recommended its adoption by the Board. The Audit Committee

had held four meetings during the current financial year. Individual
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attendance of each Committee member at these meetings is as follows: A RZ A5 R R A SRR

Attended/Eligible to attend

Name of Director EHREH WA B

Non-Executive Director FEATE S

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat BRRE B 1l 1 4/4

Independent Non-Executive Directors WL IR AT

Prof. Siu Wan Chi EEPIRGEE € 4/4

Prof. Ching Pak Chung FEAA P 20% 3/4

Mr. Yu Hon To, David AR SR 3/4

The company secretary keeps full minutes of all Audit Committee
meetings. In line with practices consistent with Board meetings, draft
and final versions of Audit Committee meeting minutes are circulated
to all members of the Audit Committee for comments, approval and

record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

The members of the Audit Committee are granted the authority to
full and unlimited access to all books and accounts of the Company
and any employees, consultants and advisers they may, from time to

time, wish to consult.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

¢ Reviewing, in draft form, the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and quarterly reports and providing

advice and comments thereon to the Board. In this regard:

e members of the Committee must liaise with the Board, senior
management and the person appointed as the Company’s
qualified accountant and the Committee must meet, at least

once a year, with the Company’s auditors; and

e the Committee should consider any significant or unusual
items that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports
and accounts and must give due consideration to any
matters that have been raised by the Company’s qualified

accountant, compliance officer or auditors.
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e Reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial reporting

and internal control procedures.

Other duties of the Audit Committee are set out in specific terms of

reference which is posted on the Group’s website.

(2) Remuneration Committee

According to the Code, the Company has established a
Remuneration Committee in September 2005 and the primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are to formulate and make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for all the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedures for
developing policy on such remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
comprises two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Prof. Siu
Wan Chi and Prof. Ching Pak Chung, and one Non-Executive Director,
namely, Dr. Chan Cheung Fat. The Chairman of the Committee is Dr.
Chan Cheung Fat. It is scheduled to meet at least once a year and the

quorum necessary for the transaction of business is two.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the financial
year under review. The Committee has considered and reviewed the
existing terms of service contracts of the Directors and considers that

the existing terms of the service contracts are fair and reasonable.

The specific terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is

posted on the Group’s website.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the performance of external auditors, the audit fee, and any question of
resignation or dismissal. The external auditors’ fee is to be negotiated
with management of the Company, and annually analyzed for the
Audit Committee’s review. The Audit Committee is also responsible
for reviewing the extent of non-audit services provided by the external

auditors in relation to their independence.
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The remuneration in respect of services provided by the external
auditors for the year ended 30 June 2008 and 2007 is analysed as

follows:

e BT N - FERZLFEAA =T HIE
AR RE > A1 R R R T HRE 1R AR OES 1) AT BA 35T I o3 Bt
Wmr

For the year ended 30 June
BEANHZ=Z1HIEFRE

2008 2007

)\ e S wias

HK$’000 HK$°000

T#IT T

Annual audit AF 337 302
Non-audit services FEAZ WU TS

— quarterly/interim result review — R 2R AR 50 50

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and in presenting the quarterly and
annual financial statements, and announcements to shareholders, the
Directors aim to present a balanced and understandable assessment of

the Company’s position and prospects.

The Directors’ responsibilities in preparing financial statements and
the auditors’ responsibilities are set out in the Auditors’ Report on page

27 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted a review of its system of internal
control periodically to ensure the effective and adequate internal
control system. The Company convened meetings periodically to
discuss financial, operational and risk management control. The
audit committee has discussed the internal control process with the
management of the Company during the financial year ended 30 June

2008.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Board of Directors of the Company believe that good corporate
governance can safeguard the effective allocation of resources and
safeguard shareholders’ interest. The Company will keep on reviewing
its corporate governance standards on a timely basis and the Board
endeavours to take the necessary actions to ensure compliance with the
required practices and standards including the provisions of the Code

on Corporate Governance Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company with its shares
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The principal
activities of its subsidiaries and an associate are set out in notes 15 and

16 to the financial statements, respectively.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2008 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 29.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group

during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 25 to the

financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS
Details of the share option schemes of the Company are set out in

note 26 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 30 June 2008:

(i) The Group’s five largest customers accounted for 26% of the

Group’s total turnover.

(ii) The Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers accounted
for 11% and 44%, respectively, of the Group’s total purchases

(not including purchases of items which are of capital nature).

According to the understanding of the Directors, none of the
Directors, their associates (within the meaning of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”)) or any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
Company's share capital had any interest in the Group’s five largest

suppliers.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its shareholders
as at 30 June 2008 comprised share premium and retained profits
in aggregate amounting to approximately HK$23,364,000 (2007:
HK$22,245,000) provided that, after distribution, the Company will be

able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

this report were:

Executive Directors:
Prof. Chan Chok Ki
Dr. Ma Chi Kit
Mr. Ho Ka Ho

Non-Executive Director:
Dr. Chan Cheung Fat

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Prof. Siu Wan Chi

Prof. Ching Pak Chung

Mr. Yu Hon To, David

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Ho Ka Ho and Dr. Chan Cheung Fat will retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each Non-Executive Director is the period up
to his retirement or rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles

of Association.

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of one year commencing 1 April
2001, which will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by

either party by giving six months’ prior written notice.

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat has entered into a two-year consultancy
agreement with the Company commencing 1 April 2001 under which
he has agreed to act as a research and development consultant to the
Group on a part-time basis. The service period of such agreement has
been extended and will continue unless and until terminated by either

party by giving three months’ prior notice.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE OPTIONS

At 30 June 2008, the interests of the Directors and their associates
in the shares and share options of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or which are required pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the
GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in shares:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

R By % i B Bl 2 A

WTEENENAZHH REEFENE
ool (138 75 Je B MR 1)) 253520 > SR 98 A1l 3
A b TR B0 545 5 4 000 R0 AN 28 W) B T 22 BT 2 B
E o T AN A TN R AR ] B AR AT
ARG 32 P (O 8 2 B 0 B A 49 55 - T 2 E %)
LA B B B HE v AT 2 M AR AT

B b 7

(a) AN &) B B 150,019 o0 2 3 58 )

Number of Percentage of

issued the issued

ordinary share capital

Name of Director Capacity shares held of the Company

A O AT A BB AT

Rk gy W B H JBe A A B

Prof. Chan Chok Ki Held by controlled corporation (Note 1) 104,000,000 57.7%
PR AT 2 4% A2 A AR (B AL

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat Held by controlled corporation (Note 1) 104,000,000 57.7%
PR 25 1+ Hi 2 HE % R A (M At

(b) Share options

Name of Director

R £

Capacity

Prof. Chan Chok Ki Beneficial owner (Note 2)

A 5 Hd B dea N (W t2)
Dr. Ma Chi Kit Beneficial owner (Note 2)
S EAE L HuadEa N (Hqt2)
Mr. Ho Ka Ho Beneficial owner (Note 2)
] K5 e A EaEAa N (B i2)
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(b) Ji B Hi

Number of Number of

share underlying

options held shares

T T B B S H HH BA B4 i H
2,700,000 2,700,000
2,160,000 2,160,000
2,044,000 2,044,000
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE OPTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(1) These shares, representing approximately 57.7% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 30 June 2008, are held by Etin City Limited,
which is owned by Etin Tech Limited and CityU Enterprises Limited in
the proportion of 70% and 30%, respectively. Etin Tech Limited is owned
by Prof. Chan Chok Ki, Dr. Chan Cheung Fat, Dr. Ma Chi Kit and Mr.
Ho Ka Ho in the proportion of approximately 44.3%, 34.3%, 14.3% and
7.1%, respectively. As Prof. Chan Chok Ki and Dr. Chan Cheung Fat are
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 30% or more of the voting
power in general meetings of Etin Tech Limited, they are deemed to be

interested in the entire shares in the Company held by Etin City Limited.

(2) The share options are granted to the Directors pursuant to the share
option schemes adopted by the Company, details of which are set out in

note 26 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, and other than a nominee share in a
subsidiary held by a Director in trust for the Group, at 30 June
2008, none of the Directors of the Company nor their associates had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or

debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes as described in note 26 to the
financial statements, at no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate and none of the directors, their spouses or children
under the age of eighteen, had any rights to subscribe for securities of

the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the related party transaction disclosed in note 31 to
the financial statements, no contracts of significance to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than the interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
Interests in Shares and Share Options”, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO discloses no person as having a notifiable interest or short

position in the issued share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2008.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are

independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and

comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in

note 26 to the financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors believe that none of the Directors nor the
management shareholders of the Company (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) had an interest in a business, which competes or may

compete with the business of the Group.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has four members comprising the three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Professor Ching Pak
Chung, Professor Siu Wan Chi and Mr. Yu Hon To, David and one Non-

Executive Director, namely Dr. Chan Cheung Fat..

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the
Company’s annual report and financial statements, quarterly reports
and half-yearly report and to provide advice and comment thereon to
the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee will also be responsible
for reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process and

internal control procedures of the Group.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the draft of this report and has

provided advice and comments thereon.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended 30
June 2008.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee comprises two Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Prof. Siu Wan Chi and Prof. Ching Pak

Chung, and one Non-Executive Director, namely, Dr. Chan Cheung Fat.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
formulate and make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all the remuneration of the Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of formal and transparent

procedures for developing policy on such remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the financial
year under review. The Committee has considered and reviewed the
existing terms of service contracts of the Directors and considers that

the existing terms of the service contracts are fair and reasonable.
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AUDITORS

The accompanying financial statements have been audited by
Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng who will retire at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-

appointment.

On 7 December 2006, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned
as the auditors of the Company and Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng were appointed on 7 December 2006 by the Directors to fill the

casual vacancy so arising.

On behalf of the Board
Prof. Chan Chok Ki
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 12 September 2008
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,f#j‘ ? g—i— gﬁ $ %% }5)1— 31/F Gloucester Tower T
Hodgson Impey Cheng The Landmark R AT AT 19E
11 Pedder Street, Central i
Chartered Accountants Hong Kong iF: = APNEEE:
Certified Public Accountants
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TELEEYE HOLDINGS LIMITED BT BEAR B A R A B ROR

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TeleEye
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 29 to 87, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 30 June 2008, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free

from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

38 3 % B i o

28

Auditors’ responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well

as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 30 June 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 12 September 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

i W ek

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEANH =+ H ILFEE

2008 2007
ZRE)\4F R
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
Mzt Tt T
Revenue YA 62,898 46,635
Cost of sales S A (32,977) (24,961)
Gross profit EH 29,921 21,674
Other income oA A 8 564 573
Selling and distribution costs B8 K 3 B AR (11,814) (9,353)
Administrative expenses 1T B2 (9,427) (6,644)
Research and development expenditure A 7% S 85 J& 32 (4,606) (4,104)
Profit before taxation I3 36 i v 1] 9 4,638 2,146
Taxation i I 11 (620) -
Profit for the year Eecyi Nl 4,018 2,146
Attributable to: DA AN REAL
Equity holders of the Company RANFIMERS A N 3,997 2,087
Minority interests D BB AR 21 59
4,018 2,146
Earnings per share =3l 12
— Basic — FR 2.22 centsflll 1.16 centsflll
— Diluted — #E 2.20 centsfll 1.16 centsfill
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At 30 June 2008 jr —ZEFE/NFEAH =1 H

B Ak

2008 2007
ZRE )N\ ZREBLAF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°’000
Mt 7t Tt THIT
Non-current assets IE V) A
Property, plant and equipment E BN & ] 13 1,643 650
Capitalised development costs B R A B AL 14 977 1,447
Interest in an associate T W N F) 2 M AR 16 — —
Available-for-sale investments Ak R 17 4,179 4,305
6,799 6,402
Current assets LB A
Inventories & 18 7,659 10,964
Trade and other receivables R WA B 3K e T At B AT 3K 19 8,353 6,565
Amount due from an associate JE WAL 255 N ) 2 R IE 20 - 14
Bank balances and cash SRATHE R I IR 4 21 17,962 11,726
33,974 29,269
Current liabilities i B A
Trade and other payables JRE AN M B A R A K 22 4,553 3,898
Amounts due to minority shareholders JREAS /D B R T 23 419 502
Tax payables JEEA ol B 334 =
5,306 4,400
Net current assets T R 28,668 24,869
Total assets less current liabilities K R B B 35,467 31,271
Non-current liability F i ) £
Deferred tax liability R S 4 A 28 271 -
Net assets & 7E HE 35,196 31,271
Capital and reserves B RSt
Share capital &S 25 1,803 1,802
Reserves fati 33,558 29,681
Equity attributable to equity holders AAFRERTEA A
of the Company JEAL 2 4 4 35,361 31,483
Minority interests g2 ratiit (165) (212)
Total equity HAME 25 35,196 31,271
The consolidated financial statements on pages 29 to 87 were approved B9FEBTH 2 M HELERGR X

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 September

2008 and are signed on its behalf by:

PROFE. CHAN CHOK KI BRAE R H$2

DIRECTOR # 3
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BALANCE SHEET

B R AR

At 30 June 2008 jr —EENEAH = +H

2008 2007
—®B\E EELE
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
Ktz Tt THIT

Non-current asset I I B
Investment in a subsidiary RS A R 2 & 15 10 10

Current assets PR <¥za
Other receivables HAth B iR 68 71
Amounts due from subsidiaries R WA BF T8 2 ) 24 21,652 20,553
Bank balances SRIT 45 BR 21 4,119 4,018
25,839 24,642
Current liability it B A

Other payables oAt JE AT 3K 682 605
Net current assets T R 25,157 24,037
Net assets 7 T E 25,167 24,047

Capital and reserves AR R At
Share capital ili&S 25 1,803 1,802
Reserves Tttt 27 23,364 22,245
Total equity HARE 4 25,167 24,047

PROFE. CHAN CHOK KI BRAESE# % MR. HO KA HO & %564

DIRECTOR #Z#

DIRECTOR #%#
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

32

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4FAH =+ H ILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AT RN
Investment
Share Share  Translation ~ revaluation Special Accumulated Minority
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
¥ HY
Bk RefiE BERGE EMRE RIS  RHER MEt BoRbE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt T T T T T T T T
(Note)
(Hfit)
At 1 July 2006 RZZZAELH—H 1,800 21,605 (85) 458 14,990 (9,736) 29,032 (248) 28,784
Exchange differences on RSN E R IR A T
translation of overseas EEZERAR
operations = = (196) = = = (196) (23) (219)
Gain on fair value changes ATk th &4 & AT
of available-for-sale Lallen
investments - - - 525 - - 525 - 525
Net (expense)/income ERTER MR
recognised directly (FI%) /A8
in equity = = (196) 525 = = 329 (23) 306
Profit for the year R A - - - - - 2,087 2,087 59 2,146
Total recognised income/ FERRERRA
(expense) for the year (B) A% - - (196) 525 = 2,087 2416 36 2452
Issue of ordinary shares TR TR 17
upon exercise of share B Lk
options 2 33 - - - - 35 - 35
At 30 June 2007 RZZFFLERA=ZTH 1,802 21,638 (281) 983 14,990 (7,649) 31,483 (212) 31,271
Exchange differences on FH G5 T 2 IR A T
translation of overseas EEZ IR AR
operations - - 8 - - - 8 26 34
Loss on fair value changes M E R EA T
of available-for-sale 2EEH
investments - - - (136) - - (136) - (136)
Net (expense)/income HEEERAERZ
recognised directly (BI) /A
in equity - - 8 (136) - - (128) 26 (102)
Profit for the year G A - - - - - 3,997 3,997 2 4,018
Total recognised income/ B RTERRA
(expense) for the year (B 3%) - - 8 (136) - 3,997 3,869 47 3,916
Issue of ordinary shares T PR HE 17
upon exercise of share Brlak
options 1 8 - - - - 9 - 9
A 30 June 2008 REZFENEAA=FH 1,803 21,646 (n) 847 14,990 (3.652) 35361 (165 35196
Autributable to an associate: I F B8 /A Al Z it
At 30 June 2007 REZZLEAAZTH - - (99) - - (961) (1,060) - (1,060)
Note: A

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the aggregate
of the nominal value of share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a
group reorganisation in April 2001 and the nominal value of the share capital

issued by the Company as consideration for the acquisition.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H M 4 i 45 B 4w
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HABlemER

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEANH =+ H ILFEE

2008 2007
BRI\ —EFXTLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES B
Profit before taxation [ . 11 Yk 1) 4,638 2,146
Adjustments for: BT ZIE H E G PR
Amortisation of capitalised development costs R A AL 2 B8 1,268 778
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #13 ~ W75 K& st 2 Jreg 672 413
Provision for obsolete goods SRR 70 1,276
Write down of inventories 17 B ik 1,657 —
Allowance for loan to an associate T B s ) B R B A 1 25
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts SRR AR 13 37
Bad debts written off T 35 i 560 -
Dividend income e Bl A (136) (127)
Interest income FE A (368) (354)
Operating cash flows before movements in KRS E S BB £
working capital B 4 i 1 8,375 4,194
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEZED, () 1,578 (3,465)
Increase in trade and other receivables AT B R e TG At JRE AT R 8 i (2,361) (755)
Decrease in amount due from an associate JRE WAL T 7 N ) 22 R TE Bk D 13 24
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables JE AT B 3 e LAl JE A5 ks i~ (D) 655 (870)
Decrease in amounts due to directors JE A} 2 = 2 R I e D - (92)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations BE (ERD KEEEZHS 8,260 (964)
Interest received B WAl E 368 354
Overseas tax paid E AT S B IE (15) =
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ WA (R 8825 B &5
(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 8,613 (610)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES G
Dividend income received B S Ui A 125 127
Increase in capitalised development costs B A A AL 18 0 (798) (626)
Proceeds from disposal of property, Y - R Bk Y T A5 R E
plant and equipment 3 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WA 2 ~ B By (1,666) (357)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES M F it #0836 % > B 4 3 4 (2,336) (856)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il 2 s
Repayment to a minority shareholder P D BUROR (83) =
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BEAT % I A5 Ak OH 9 35
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM (HEFI ) /5 A b & 325
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Z B4 (74) 35
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH Bie KB &S m, GRd) F
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 6,203 (1,431)
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES ON TRANSLATION #&5% & A& i [ 58 25 B 33 (197)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT T 4490 W B 4 I B 4 S
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 11,726 13,354
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TAE W B 4 X Bl & S E Y
AT END OF THE YEAR, (B R AT 45 % S Bl 4)
represented by bank balances and cash 17,962 11,726
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4FAH =+ H ILFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding company
is Etin Tech Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the

corporate information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the

Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries and an associate are set out in notes

15 and 16, respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, of
the following new standard, amendment and interpretations (the
“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) which are effective for the
Group’s financial year beginning 1 July 2007.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKFRS 7
HK(IFRIC)-Int 10

Capital Disclosures

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2-Group and Treasury Share

Transactions

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on
how the results and financial position for the current or prior
accounting periods are prepared and presented. Accordingly, no

prior year adjustment has been required.

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under HKAS
1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 retrospectively. Certain information
presented in prior year under the requirements of HKAS 32 has
been removed and the relevant comparative information based on
the requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has been

presented for the first time in the current year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % —

2.

EENERNHA =+ H AR

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised

standards or interpretations that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKFERS 2 (Amendment)

HKERS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(FRIC)-Int 14

HK(FRIC)-Int 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

Presentation of Financial Statements'

Borrowing Costs'

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements?

Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations'

Business Combinations?

Operating Segments'

Service Concession Arrangements’

Customer Loyalty Programmes*

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction’

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate'
Hedges of a Net Investment in a

Foreign Operation’®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of

these standards or interpretations will have no material impact on

the results and financial position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4FAH =+ H ILFE

3.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H M 4 i 45 B 4w

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special
purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain

benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,

as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with

those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority
interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests
at the date of the original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests
of the Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover

the losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEANH =+ H ILFEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint

venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates
are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted
for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net
assets of the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability
is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that

associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition
is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the
carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment

as part of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the
cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s

interest in the relevant associate.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and

sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title

has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the

financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item)
is included in the consolidated income statement in the year in

which the item is derecognised.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss
on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expenses over the

lease term on a straight line basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part
of the Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which
case, such exchange differences are recognised in equity in the
consolidated financials statements. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in

equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity (the translation
reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are charged as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither

the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associate,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all

or part of the asset to be recovered.

Annual Report 2008 4 #i

3.

FE A FHBOR (8])

A8 A A o AR

T S BBt ORI AR A & #3152 2 3RIE TR
fE B 2 5 IR B Bl i aF = A ik
it IRF A1 BR A 2 BH S o

i JH
JIr 5B B S T 4 B I B A5 B TE R AR SE B OH o

B I 8 A ol T 4% A AR R R B v ) 5 e ot
B o MERRBLUR FIA B R &5 Al g R T 2
ezt A o PR HAS B AR H At AR R 2 T R
SRR 2 W A BB SC T E - I8 A B A
R R B 2 T E o AS 4 ] Y ) B I
Af HOHATHWREI LA EE ECH
THIBLZEFE o

R S TH U AR R A S RS R T E K& A
15 2 W T BT A R R B A 2 AT B
ol %<k ME 2 SE R AR - S PR T B R AR
B B R o A AE Bl I B A W R B A
R T IR 2 AR R RD T AE RE B JH
{2 B 7% TR U B R ik P RT3 A K8 T T
B ) 2 AT 9 I 22 R R AE R o i IR 22
BT A w RO B AR ERR (I JF S8 &
) 22 5y o AS v e M R ik M) X% B i R 2
HAtEE kAl ZFEERABIAT
DIfHERE o

A SIE Tl JEB R TS 2 R BB 8 R R g A
Al 2 PR 2 M ERBL T I 2 R T AR R AR
S T T 22 T I 22 RE 2 I 8 R T R IR 22
HEUIF A B T AT Ak [ 43 B B A

R SIE Tl JF S 7 2 MR T R R A5 A H R B
Ko WA 2 FE M S P A TR R M R B v A
DA 18] BT A 28 44 o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with

in equity.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses

(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses below).

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the

consolidated income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development costs
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in

the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated that the
development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project will
be recovered through future commercial activity. The resultant
asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life, and
carried at cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any

accumulated impairment losses.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to income statement in the

period in which it is incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Intangible assets (continued)

Impairment

Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their carrying amounts with
their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment
when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired (see the
accounting policies in respect of impairment losses for tangible

and intangible assets below).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet when an entity of the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place. The accounting policies adopted

are set out below.

Annual Report 2008 4 #i

3.

FE A FHBOR (8])

e ¥ A ()

I (e

W oA AT {4 fo T RO S TR O TR AN AR R R
A AT BF S B & W] BE B AR B(E T A A
A7 90 AR A > bl R B T (L B AT o ] <
HH o TR Al R A 09 AT i | e A D H AR
(R ERE - O N TR e Ve S N g CTE S
FH o WE M R e L RV AERR A L o

il 5 (L Ml 18 7 FEAR 8% 1) - R 2 BRI (E
1% 58 Tt 2 E A AR 2 Al i e AR o T 3 0 AR
R T EL AN A5 R A A1 7 % EE AE A 1 AR
Sifr 4 ik w0 ok L Mg R R T A R 2 IR T (L -
38 [A] 2 Yol L s 48 B IRF A R 3 U o

A AR 0 A PR Y M TR TE A R SR
A AR A W R AT E AR A (LR 3
A B A T B T 7 AR R & R TR -

S T A

AR T R A TR S AR — T R
FHEGGEEAMR RS EE L&
Rl AT o < T R <6 Rl AE A 0 e SR
& Lo~ P B (AT RE & o B8 BT B R
R ERHE AT 4 R R A AR OB R A A 4
I8P AR B A B <6 RS E e < L AL REBR A1)
H 28 5 T AE 40 46 fife 58 I 5 A 540 B %% &
il B < R AR (R fRT R I SE) B A
B A o B R P A S W AR AR 4R 1
i (B 57 1 19 =l el R B0 32 5
JH 5z BV 7E 4 £ TR o

<2l

A G2 9 Y < A B ST B KRN R WA O
DL R ay At i B B < R EE o DLW R U
B e R E > W S H Oy R
A7 e 50 ml A% 1 AR o LA R R O 2K
i R 1 R AE A B T 3 B R B A ] 2
WHIENRFH NN EENEMEERH -
JIT R A0 B4 B BRSO R 3 e



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEANH =+ H ILFEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,

where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets designated as at
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, of which

interest income is included in net gains or losses.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables, amount
due from an associate and bank balances) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy in respect of impairment

loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as loans and receivables and
not held for trading purpose. The Group designated listed equity

securities as available-for-sales financial assets.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity
is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss (see
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets

below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been

impacted.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its

cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

(b) default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

(¢) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 30 days, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default

on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated

future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in

subsequent periods.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have

been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in
fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in
equity. For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after

the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by an entity
of the Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial

liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4FAH =+ H ILFE

3.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H M 4 i 45 B 4w

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other
than those financial liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, of which the interest expense is included in net

gains or losses.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
amounts due to minority shareholders) are subsequently measured

at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity

is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised

in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at
the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to

present value where the effect is material.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEANH =+ H ILFEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For share options granted to employees, the fair value of services
received determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share

options reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The effect
of the change in estimate, if any, is recognised in profit or loss

with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be

transferred to retained profits.

For share options granted to suppliers in exchange for goods
or services, they are measured at the fair value of the goods or
services received. The fair values of the goods or services are
recognised as expenses immediately, unless the goods or services
qualify for recognise as assets. Corresponding adjustments have

been made to equity.

For share options granted by the Company which were vested
before 1 January 2005, the fair value of those share options are
not recognised as expenses in accordance with the transitional
provision of HKFRS 2.

Impairment losses (other than goodwill and intangible assets
that are not yet ready for use (see the accounting policies in
respect of intangible assets above))

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4FAH =+ H ILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The critical accounting judgement and key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis at each
balance sheet date, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items especially technology solution system
identified that are of minimal resale value due to technological
changes. The management estimates the net realisable value for
such inventory based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory
review on a product-by-product basis at the balance sheet date and

makes allowance for obsolete items.

Estimated impairment of capitalised development costs
Determining whether capitalised development costs is impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount determined by
the value in use of the capitalised development costs. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the capitalised development costs and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
The Group carries out an impairment review assessment on a
product-by-product basis in respect of the capitalised development
costs at the balance sheet date and no impairment is made for the
years ended 30 June 2008 and 2007.

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

The policy for allowance of bad and doubtful debts of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of
accounts and on management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions
of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional

allowances may be required.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEANH =+ H ILFEE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. TR
a) Categories of financial instruments a) SRt By
2008 ZRF)NF
Financial assets & Al B
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
SR AL B A
R WA K JE £ B R st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T-#oT T-#oT T-#oT
Available-for-sale investments ] fit R - 4,179 4,179
Trade and other receivables AR A B 3 K JEC At JE i 3K 8,353 - 8,353
Bank balances and cash SRAT &5 bR M Bl 4 17,962 - 17,962
26,315 4,179 30,494

Financial liabilities

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
TR A B
B 5 i A
HK$°000

T#L

Trade and other payables

R AR R 2 Al B A 3k

Amounts due to minority shareholders & {5 2> 8% 5 31 IH

4,553
419

4,972
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4FAH =+ H ILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 4 T H (%)
a) Categories of financial instruments (continued) a) LRt B (%)
2007 ZERFLF
Financial assets & Al B
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
A R ER
JRE WS &2 il B PE stk
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T T
Available-for-sale investments CIRER R = 4,305 4,305
Trade and other receivables JRRE WA B 2 e JEC At JRE A 3K 6,565 - 6,565
Amount due from an associate B WA T 285 A ) 2 3K 14 - 14
Bank balances and cash RATE R M 4 11,726 = 11,726
18,305 4,305 22,610

Financial liabilities

e
=
Y
o

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
Fo 4 5 A w2
HY) <2 B
HK$’000

T 7T

Trade and other payables

R AT B K S A 1B ARk 35

Amounts due to minority shareholders & {sf 2 BB 53k 1H

3,898
502

4,400
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEANH =+ H ILFEE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b)

5. 4T A ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies b) B R B A B H AR X BUR
The Group’s major financial instruments include available- AL ) 35 EE 4 il T G 3 T R
for-sale investments, trade and other receivables, amount due B &~ R i B2 R S H At RE die 3k > E Wk
from an associate, bank balances, trade and other payables Wi & 2N\ GRIE - $RAT A5 AR~ AT AR K
and amounts due to minority shareholders. Details of these B HoAth HE AT 3R> LA B AT /D 0 PR K
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The He ABZEEmM LEHMFFEERSH
risks associated with these financial instruments and the Bl BT 5 A 98 R o A BH A% SE Al R
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. JE B Ko 0 5% 55 TR B B BUAR A R 3C o
The management manages and monitors these exposures to BT B P N B A% 5E AL B o DA R R
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely TE 7 5 IRF [A] A 2% BE AT 6 8 Y 4 it o
and effective manner.
Market risk 177 55 I B
Foreign currency risk management S R
Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency AN E 2 T BN a5l LA T E = >
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign e A B2 (3] T 3 A WL B o AS 4 B R
currency risk. Approximately 87.0% of the Group’s sales are FHAI87.0% 2 LA A T 8 65 11 4 [ BT HE 1
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency I fe £ M DL AN R WS E Y 5 T 4% T
of the group entity making the sale, whilst almost 67.7% 67.7%19 AL A DLAE B 11 8 & 1 19 2 Re
of costs are denominated in the group entity’s respective ¥ B ME -
functional currencies.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign denominated AR H O A SR [ LA 2 LY
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporting date e W E B M A A R T (EL
are as follows: e
Liabilities Assets
= 93
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZRFN\F —EFELF SERE)N\S “EEEF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T#o0 THs T R T#s T
GBP L % 1,087,000 969,000 6,021,000 3,462,000

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure closely and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4EAH =+ H ILFEE

5.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H M 4 i 45 B 4w

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk management (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuation in

GBP.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in the Hong Kong dollars against
the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchanges rates. The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the period end for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes bank
balances within the Group where the denomination of the
bank balances is in a currency other than the currency of the
Company. A positive number below indicates an increase in
profit where the Hong Kong dollars strengthen 5% against
the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of the Hong Kong
dollars against the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit, and the balances below

would be negative.

5.

Sl TR ()

b) B R B A BE H A R BOSRE (A
17 53 I B (#7)
S B B RE ()
HHREJE 7T

Z3 SUES RS TR A

N ERFES T A SR B A B A B AL
W 110 B 3 75 M B 593 9 IRy 19 BURUE -
5% J7 N i 3 A BN B RE i A1 R
B IR ST B 0 A ORI A R
A e T < 5 B AT BE 2 B 1Y BT Al o AU
JBE 73 v €0 3% LA A1 5 B 9 B W R OE
L St 58 % T ) A PR A1 T T 3 5 ) 5%
Tt 35 B 3 B o SRR 23 BT B4 A 4R
BAMITHGRNBERREACAAAFAR
W LU B I SRAT A5 B8R o TSI IE Bk
7 {it A T {5 70 A A B B 5.9 ey
HETm o H kO AR B AT B R S 5% R
i A B B AR R (H IR B AR
T T 5 4 B 7 S e

Impact of GBP

e B 1 5 B
2008 2007
TRE)N\E ZRE LA
HK$’000 HK$000
T#T Tt
Profit or loss it 1) 5 15 92,000 -
Other equity HoAth 4 45 172,000 143,000

Interest rate risk management

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group
currently does not have a policy on hedges of interest rate
risk. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate

exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEAH =+ H ILFEE

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
through its investment in available-for-sale investments.
The management manages this exposure by maintaining a

portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based

on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.

If equity prices had been 5% higher/lower, investment
revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by HK$209,000
(2007: HK$215,000) as a result of the changes in fair value

of available-for-sale investments.

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2008, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised

financial assets as stated in the consolidated balance sheet.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet
date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly

reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings,
the Group does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk. Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical

areas.

5.

S TR ()

b)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4FAH =+ H ILFEE

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b)

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H M 4 i 45 B 4w

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash

flows.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities which are included in the
maturity analysis provided internally to the key management
personnel for the purpose of managing liquidity risk. The
tables reflect the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and

principal cash flows.

5.

S T H ()

b)

Vo 785 o A B A % BOSRE (A0)

0 ) B < I B

16 B B B 4 Ry T A 4R
B P HERE I — K 2 B B B S
Yy o T wZ K F TS A B AR 2 2 LA A
AN 5 T 26 755 5 B T v S B 4 U IR
Bree-

i B 5 7

TR AR A T < L R BT ORI BR A A
oo HeFEaerdfEm EZEHARR
At DU 3 B < A B Y 2 30 A2 A
Ao TR 3RS W< il B AT R I BB &
WE > ZEFEEMARIIREAREEA
REZH A A i e L H 0 0 o T R4
FBEAEB EHE -

Total  Total carrying
Less than Over undiscounted amount as at
2008 1 year 1 year cash flows 30 June 2008
W RE A
RFBBE ASNH=ZTHMW
RE)\4E AR 14R A 14R it = A Y T A 4w
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T#oT T#T T#oc T#oT
Non-derivative FE A A= 4 il B 1
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables JREASH B 3K B
H A A K 4,553 - 4,553 4,553
Amounts due to minority JREASS D S8 1% B R TH
shareholders 419 - 419 419
Total Total carrying
Less than Over undiscounted amount as at
2007 1 year 1 year cash flows 30 June 2007
AR B
RTHBE SNH=EZTHH
“RELAE IR 14 i 14 it = A H THT (B A 5
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T T
Non-derivative FE AT A 4 il B AR
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables JREASH B 3K B
H A A5 K 3,898 - 3,898 3,898
Amounts due to minority JREAST D S0 1% PR R IH
shareholders 502 - 502 502
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEAH =+ H ILFEE

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

—  the fair values of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices;

and

—  the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices from observable market

transactions.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the financial statements approximate their corresponding fair

values.

5. &R T A (8)
b) B R B A BE H A R BOSRE (A
< R 1 4T
<& T < AR R A PR (E R D
77 A EE

— AR MR K R AR AR T ELAE 9
T R T8 b R
A EAE > T9 2% BTk T
Y W AR E 5 B

—  HCAth A E K AR A
B T AR 590 2 AR 1Y 7 A
i ) T B T 35 28 B ) (B AR > AR
PR3 5 U ST B AT R E o

RS A o R A A B
5 3 T 2 A% A T Bk ) R TET (B B2
A AR MR FEAE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4EAH =+ H ILFE

6.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged

from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
includes trade and other payables), cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising

issued share capital and reserves.

Debt to equity ratio

The Group’s senior management reviews the capital structure on
a quarterly basis. As part of this review, the senior management
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each

class of capital.

The debt to equity ratio at the year end was as follows:

2 < J i B

A5 45 B B K B o R DA O TE R IR BRI
A HE g 2 T A M RSP A o e DR A AR I R
FE BE AR A A o [ e A 94 o BB SR v [l
7 £ [ ) R SR % BAL O AR AR AR AN B o

A 45 B 1Y) B AR R LA R CHL B 4 B AR
A HARFEAT ) - Bl KB &S EY > U
Be A oy wIHE £ 45 A N HEAG HE £ (FL 36 384T
JBe AR B gt i) o

£ 3 B B P R

A S B R AR B A T AR L AN 2 o AR
MR B mAREEEEEE SN
BRARS B A 76 4 14 A ) JRL B o

AR > £ A 3 L S

2008 2007
TRE)N\E ZRE LA

HK$°000 HK$°000

T#5T T T

Debt (i) RIE () 4,553 3,898
Equity (ii) HE i (i) 35,361 31,483
12.9% 12.4%

(i)  Debt comprises trade and other payables as detailed in note 22.

(ii) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEANH =+ H ILFEE

7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods
sold, less returns and allowances, to outside customers during the

year.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the
Group has determined that geographical segment by location of

customers is its primary reporting format.

Geographical segment

The Group reports its primary segment information by
geographical location of its customers who are principally located
in Hong Kong, Singapore, other Asian countries, Middle East,

Europe and Africa. Others include locations like the Americas and

Australia. Segment information about these geographical markets

is presented below:

o BUE R

WA AR B R EE R 2 Bl
] B RAG T AN 20 5 IR K B 2 A o

HRYE A G [ 2 o o B 5 2 ol Oy 5 AR
e DL 5 2 i AE [ 4y R A 2 H g

g5 o o

Hb [ws 53

REFURES LFEF ERARFE B
T3~ At S U B 5K R RO K E W)
Z FTE b i 2R OFG T RS R o [ Al )
A1 45 22 Y B N S5 M [ o DL % 4% bR

W 8 5> 2 T35 2 7 BUE K -

2008 ZEEFEN\F
Other Asian Middle
Hong Kong ~ Singapore ~ countries East Europe Africa Others ~Eliminations Consolidated
Kb
E MM EWEE T e Hl 1) HA 5}
HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000
T#r  T#x TEx T T T T TEx T
REVENUE BA
External sales KBS 2 6% 7528 4729 9,793 9397 19,791 9,678 1,982 - 628%
Inter-segment sales i Liva - 154 509 - 9,865 - - (12,89) -
Total A% 7528 7,253 10,302 9,397 29,656 9,678 1,982 (12,898) 62,898
SEGMENT RESULT YEES | 1,797 474 1,742 3375 3137 3,791 454 - T
Unallocated corporate income K AR 564
Unallocated corporate expenses RAMMARER
- Administrative and other expenses - BRI ER (6,090)
- Research and development expenditure - W RE R (4,600)
Profit before taxation BeBipna Al 4,638
Taxation fiE (620)
Profit for the year R 4018

Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus a percentage mark-up.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4EAH =+ H ILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. SEER(E)
Geographical segment (continued) Hi s 43 38 (%)
2008 (continued) —FBE)\E (4)
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment DAR 5 4% % 5 BT 7E M [ #1 4r 2 r BE R
assets and segment liabilities, analysed by the geographical B E 2 IR AE Z T

location of its customers:

2008 ZFFNF
Other Asian Middle
Hong Kong Singapore countries East Europe Africa Others  Consolidated
JbmH

Fi Himsi [F3 R B FH K R
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000

T T Tk T T Tk T T

ASSETS ki
Segment assets R 044 1,270 991 2 5,763 45 (6) 9,205
Unallocated corporate assets A B/ /A 7l 31,568
Consolidated total assets GABEE 40,773
LIABILITIES fifk
Segment liabilities HRAR 1,940 148 596 252 938 138 136 4148
Unallocated corporate liabilities £ &4/ ] £ & 1,429
Consolidated total liabilities GREARK 5,577
Other Asian Middle
Hong Kong Singapore countries East Europe Africa Others  Consolidated
b
HiE A B L B Al kit it}
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T Tt Tt T Tt Tt T T
OTHER INFORMATION b
Capital additions EARE 1,154 14 - - 498 - - 1,666
Depreciation it 459 9 14 - 190 - - 672
Development costs capitalised B EBAEA (L 798 - - - - - - 798
Provision for obsolete goods REE &G (15) ®) 211 (28) (54) (29) M 10
Write down of inventories TR 146 80 319 260 512 27 63 1,657
Allowance for loan to ATHELH
an associate B - - 1 - - - - 1
Amortisation of capitalised BREAAGAL
development costs ZBH 1,208 - - - - - - 1,208
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEANH =+ H ILFEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

7. aBER (5D

Geographical segment (continued) H I o3 1 (47)
2007 —FFLE
Other Asian Middle
Hong Kong  Singapore  countries East Europe Africa Others  Eliminations ~Consolidated
U]
wE O H [P TR Bt il 1) HA &
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000  HK$000  HKS000 HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000
Tiér  TEx Tz TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx Ti#x  TEx
REVENUE BA
External sales KBS 2 B 6,077 5,108 5616 4976 16,662 5318 2878 - 4663
Inter-segment sales i Liva - 2557 415 - 8,098 - - (11,00 -
Total A% 6,077 7,665 6,031 4976 24,760 5318 18718 (11,070) 46,035
SEGMENT RESULT YEES | 793 10 573 1,600 3671 L670 1012 158 10179
Unallocated corporate income K AR 573
Unallocated corporate expenses FAMMARER
- Administrative and other expenses - B R EER (4,502)
- Research and development expenditure - W RE R (4,104)
Profit for the year EREER 2,146

Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus a percentage mark-up.

e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4FAH =+ H ILFEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. SREER ()
Geographical segment (continued) H I o3 1 (57)
2007 (continued) ZERBELE (4)
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment DLTF /% i % 5 BT 7R #h s 81 43 2 40 818 e )
assets and segment liabilities, analysed by the geographical DB E 2 IR AE Z T

location of its customers:

2007 BB L
Other Asian Middle
Hong Kong Singapore countries East Europe Africa Others  Consolidated
L
Fit s % R B 3l Jif D

HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKSO0  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
T Fibn T T T T T T

ASSETS ki
Segment assets R 31 o1l 683 £} 463 9 () 6,706
Unallocated corporate assets FEMOATEE 28,965
Consolidated total assets BAMEE 35,071
LIABILITIES fifk
Segment liabilities HRAR 833 395 0 91 045 250 117 3071
Unallocated corporate liabilities FEMAFERE 1329
Consolidated total liabilities GRUAR 4400
Other Asian Middle
Hong Kong Singapore countries East Europe Africa Others  Consolidated
HEH
&l A A% il d B il i &
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tix T T Tix T T Tix Tix
OTHER INFORMATION KlxH
Capital additions EARE 115 7 = = 35 = = 357
Depreciation e 329 7 B = 49 - - 413
Development costs capitalised B HA B AL 626 - - - - - - 626
Provision for obsolete goods A% K B 131 73 375 136 333 156 n 1,276
Allowance for loan to ATREAT
an associate B S f = - P5] - - - - 25
Amortisation of capitalised RENAEAL
development costs LEH 178 - - - - - - 178
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEAH =+ H ILFEE

7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Geographical segment (continued)

2007 (continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment
assets, and additions to property, plant and equipment and
capitalised development costs analysed by the geographical area in

which the assets are located.

7. A BER (5D
o [ 7y 3 ()
“RRLE (H)
DLTR 7% 5 6 BT A b IR B 0> 2 O B E 2
e T R B W) 36~ RS Bkl B B AR AL B
B 2R B2 A

Carrying amounts

of segment assets

Additions to

property, plant

and equipment

and capitalised

development costs

W3 - W5 B A L

43 JRE A 2 MR T EL B AR B AL Z 9 B
2008 2007 2008 2007
TREN\E CERELE TRER)N\EFE S 2
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
T#L T T T T

Hong Kong 7 W 33,184 28,347 1,952 741
Singapore B 3% 1,668 1,528 14 7
Other Asian countries L Ath 55 9 5 5% 62 458 - =
Europe R M 5,859 5,338 498 235
40,773 35,671 2,464 983

Business segments S Td |

The Group is solely engaged in research and development and
sales and marketing of video surveillance systems. No further
business segment information is presented as all of the Group’s
revenue, operating results and assets were attributable to this

business segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4FAH =+ H ILFEE

8.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H M 4 i 45 B 4w

OTHER INCOME 8. AU A
2008 2007
TRE)N\E —EZELF
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T
Other income is analysed as follows: HAbg A Z 53 Hran -
Interest income from T E LA IHEE 2 FLE Uk A
— bank deposits — SRATAF K 366 351
— loan to an associate — & T B N FE 2 B 2 3
Dividend income from listed b TR g MR R A B B A
equity securities 136 127
Others HoAth 60 92
564 573
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRBLHT i A
2008 2007
ZREF)\4F R LA
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T IT
Profit before taxation has been arrived at [ B4 BT %6 A 2 ks (FEA) ¢
after charging/(crediting):
Employee benefits expense (including & B A& B B S (636 7 <)
directors’ remuneration)
Salaries, wages and other benefits 4 > L& K H A AR A 14,857 12,595
Retirement benefits scheme contributions AR A A AL K 809 599
15,666 13,194
Less: Amount capitalised as development W B AL AR R AR 2 FROE
costs (798) (626)
14,868 12,568
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts R R A 13 37
Bad debts written off S AR EH 560 -
Allowance for loan to an associate T W N Bk T 1 25
Provision for obsolete goods (included R B AR (25 A8 & iAS)
in cost of sales) 70 1,276
Write down of inventories (included 7 B o (2 9 A 8 8 il AR)
in cost of sales) 1,657 —
Amortisation of capitalised development B R A A AL 2 ik 5
costs (included in research and (B F AW 58 B 85 @ S )
development expenditure) 1,268 778
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B il B 4 387 302
Net foreign exchange gains A s REE 50, 1A 7 1 A (148) (728)
Depreciation of property, plant and W BB K 2 s
equipment 672 413
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEAH =+ H ILFEE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 10. ## 0@ B 4
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2007: 8) BT 74 (BT LA 8%) B HFH A
directors were as follows: B R0
2008 ZFFN\E
Prof. Chan Dr. Ma Mr.Ho  Dr. Chan Prof. Siu  Prof. Ching  Mr. Yu Hon
Chok Ki Chi Kit KaHo CheungFat ~ Wan Chi  Pak Chung  To David Total

Bifeas BEBEL  MRIEE WREHL BAREE BRAPAR GEERE #it
HK$000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000
T T T T T T T T

Fees fiEA
Other emoluments HAl B & - - - - 60 60 60 180
Salaries and other benefits Fra R MR 2,129 608 703 187 - - - 3,627
Contributions to retirement RRARFIGHBIER
benefit schemes 12 12 12 - - - - 36
Total emoluments am s 2,141 620 715 187 60 60 60 3,843
2007 —RRLE
Prof. Chan Dr. Ma Mr.Ho  Dr. Chan Prof. Siu M. Yeung  Prof. Ching  Mr. Yu Hon
Chok Ki Chi Kit KaHo CheungFat ~ WanChi ~ KwokKi Pak Chung  ToDavid Total
WRASR BSEEE WEREEE WHENLE BARAR BESEE BORAE aEEkE st
HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T T Tk T T Tk Tk Tl Tk
(Note (i) (Note (ii))
0l (Hita)
Fees W4
Other emoluments 4 - - - - 60 30 60 23 178
Salaries and other benefits 4 REMmRER 2,084 124 650 187 - = = = 3,645
Contributions to retirement BIKEA IR
benefit schemes 12 12 12 - - - - - 36
Total emoluments A4 2,096 736 662 187 60 30 60 28 3859
Notes: Mt -
(i) Mr. Yeung Kwok Ki resigned as independent non-executive director () BEEEER-FZANETLAZF/NA
of the Company on 28 December 2006. BHEA A L F AT #H S -
(ii) Mr. Yu Hon To David was appointed as independent non-executive (i) ATEERAR__FEZLE—H FANHES
director of the Company on 16 January 2007. ELy AN R B ASLIE AT E R o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4EAH =+ H ILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
The five highest paid individuals included three (2007: three)
directors of the Company, details of whose emoluments are set
out above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2007: two)
individuals, which fall within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000
for each of the two years ended 30 June 2008 and 2007, were as

10.

A R H 4 ()

TERA M SR AN Td > BFALRZ
SR (CEFLE: =) FF BT EX
WA AT B I B e o HBR W (—FF L
W) NERERE CRFENE R FE
EAEIN A =+ H bk m R 4E A B & A

follows: T %1,000,000% 06 > #EIE AR
2008 2007
ZREF)\4F SRR AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T e T
Salaries and other benefits 4 S H A AE A 1,150 1,238
Retirement benefits scheme contributions ERU N ATl (KA 147 139
1,297 1,377

During each of the two years ended 30 June 2008 and 2007, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, including directors, as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, no director waived any emoluments during the years

ended 30 June 2008 and 2007.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEANH =+ H ILFEE

11. TAXATION

The charge comprises:

11.

i IH
i JH 22 ] A 4

2008 2007

ZREF)N\E —ERELE

HK$°000 HK$’000

T#T T#IT

Hong Kong Profits Tax — current year 5 Y A 15 Bl — 7 4F 332 -

Other jurisdictions HAth ] 35 [

Current year provision AR 4 =

Underprovision in prior years DUHT 4F B D 512 13 =

17 -

349 -

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 28) 0 3 B TH 415 (MY At 28) 271 -
Taxation attributable to the Company i JBg s A N ) R FC R IS 4 D A B IE

and its subsidiaries 620 -

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2007:

17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong

for the year ended 30 June 2008. No tax was payable on profit

arising in Hong Kong for the year ended 30 June 2007 since the

assessable profits were wholly absorbed by tax losses brought

forward.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #% %% /4N =+ H L4

11. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 11. BLIH ()
The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit AR AR JE 2 Tl TE B R 5 i 4R 2R T BR B EI
before taxation in the consolidated income statement as follows: thi A 2 BRI T -
2008 2007
ZRF)N\F —EFTLEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#T T#E T
Profit before taxation B A il Vi 1) 4,638 2,146
Tax at the domestic income tax rate i A H i 15 BB %£16.5%
of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) (ZFFB4 0 17.5%) sHEBIH 765 375
Tax effect of expenses that are not AT 08 B 5 2 B R 2
deductible for tax purposes 477 288
Tax effect of income that is not taxable T J8 R B IR A 2 B 5% 28
for tax purposes (187) (381)
Utilisation of tax loss not previously ) R 1 v R ERR 2 B IH 48
recognised (870) (446)
Tax effect of deferred tax assets not R THE R 0% B o T 2 B S S
recognised 162 164
Tax effect of temporary timing difference ¥ v IRy [H] 2 B 1) B 755 5 28 271 -
Tax effect on different tax rate of T H A ) 32 HE [ 46 7 SE T B =6
operations in other jurisdictions AN [ Y B 755 5 ¢ 2 -
Taxation charge for the year AL RE 2 B IH 2 620 =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEANH =+ H ILFEE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. &R
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share A ) 5 JRRE AR A N TR AL R R R AR R
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is P 2 R AR 5 DA T BeE R

based on the following data:

2008 2007
BB\ —RFLEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T#s T
Earnings i 1
Profit for the year attributable to A\ B RE 4 1A N B AL AF 3 Vs
equity holders of the Company 3,997 2,087
000 000
T T
Weighted average number of ordinary FA UART 8 B AR R 2
shares for the purpose of basic A 7 I Jn HE S 1 2
earnings per share 180,298 180,007
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary DL YEETE AT v 0 S 3 I 2 5 88
shares in respect of:
— Share options — I I 1,109 -
Weighted average number of ordinary FH DA G5 i 4 vy 21 R 2
shares for the purpose of diluted A 7 I 0 RE S 1 2
earnings per share 181,407 180,007
The share options outstanding during the year ended 30 June BEZEEZLFEANA=Z1THIEFEZ K
2007 had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share for AT {68 T e A 5% 4R 2 B8 AR R AR B R L
the year. W2 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #% —ZFZ /4R =+ H L4

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W3 ~ W Kkt

Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
improvements and fixtures equipment vehicle Total
MEWEEE BFRERER BAEHM R A5t
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
T T T T T T T T T T
THE GROUP A 4 [H
COST B AR
At 1 July 2006 W _EENFELH—H 469 445 2,796 243 3,953
Exchange adjustments [fEE 52, o] 4 2 32 - 38
Additions B - - 357 - 357
Disposals H B - - (12) — (12)
At 30 June 2007 W EELESNH=ZTH 473 447 3,173 243 4336
Exchange adjustments [fFE 2, 5] %% 9 3 30 - 42
Additions S 323 387 493 463 1,666
Disposals e (394) 4) (82) = (480)
At 30 June 2008 W EEFENFESNH=Z1TH 411 833 3,614 706 5,564
DEPRECIATION 85
At 1 July 2006 BTSN FELH—H 448 384 2,320 101 3,253
Exchange adjustments [ 5a, 3 3% 4 1 27 - 32
Provided for the year A B EH R 21 32 279 81 413
Disposals fab (=5 = = (12) = (12)
At 30 June 2007 A ZEEFLESNH=1H 473 417 2,614 182 3,686
Exchange adjustments [TEE 52, o] 9 3 28 - 40
Provided for the year 7R A R EE R 68 122 280 202 672
Disposals fit 5 (394) ) (79) = “477)
At 30 June 2008 W EENESNH=TH 156 538 2,843 384 3,921
CARRYING AMOUNTS R {4
At 30 June 2008 W EEFENFESNH=Z1TH 255 295 771 322 1,643
At 30 June 2007 W oEELFEANHA=ZTH = 30 559 61 650
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEAH =+ H ILFEE

13.

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of the above items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:
Leasehold improvements 33 /3% or over the lease term,

whichever is shorter

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 20% — 33'/3%
Motor vehicle 335%

CAPITALISED DEVELOPMENT COSTS

13. Y3 ~ W Kokt (78)
a2 - R E K s TE B T R EHE
52 DA EL AR AN ST AT (R AR & R
i LAt 2l A (B AR A B L B A > AR

iEN=R B 331/3% 5% A B 1A
(LA S 3 1 o)

AL Sk 20%

e % B 20% —33'/5%

TRH 333%

14. 3% A G A (b

Total
HEE
HK$000
FHs T
THE GROUP A< 45 4
COST TR A
At 1 July 2006 R ZEENEELHT —H 7,956
Additions NE 626
At 30 June 2007 A FEEFLESNH = TH 8,582
Additions NE 798
At 30 June 2008 BT NAESNH =T H 9,380
AMORTISATION B 615
At 1 July 2006 BTN FELH—H 6,357
Provided for the year A AR EHER 778
At 30 June 2007 ATERELESNH=1TH 7,135
Provided for the year A AR EHR 1,268
At 30 June 2008 W EEFENFEANRH=Z1H 8,403
CARRYING AMOUNTS W Y fE
At 30 June 2008 W EEFNEANH=ZTH 977
At 30 June 2007 W EFEELEASH = TH 1,447

Development costs recognised as an asset are amortised using the
straight-line method over three years from the date it is available

for use.

The directors reviewed the carrying value of the capitalised
development cost at the balance sheet dates with reference to the
discounted future cash flows from the products developed. They
determined that no impairment loss should be made at 30 June

2008 and 2007.

L fifl 5 /% T 7 B BE R AR > A AT R T
H AR 5 = 4 A M L) B ARS8 -

HEHC 2% O EE M T BURRBL &
BoOREEA A FEME AR AR ZRW
HeWERH R-FFNFR_FFL
FERA = H AR B EEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4FAH =+ H ILFEE

15. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY - BB A E 2 B
The Company
A2 ]
2008 2007
ZFEF )\ e
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T#IT
Unlisted investment, at cost LW E AR 10 10

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 30 June 2008 were as

follows:

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operation

Issued and fully
paid up ordinary
share capital/

registered capital

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital/

registered capital

held by the Company

RoFENEARNA=Z+H > ARXFEWEA
Al ZFEEAT

Principal activities

HAR AR R Z
SR ZRPSE IS B ITA,
FEM B, R BB BEA FEE A
Fi¥ JE5 2 W] 44 T 5878 Hb ERIIEZEN HEE G EEEE
Directly Indirectly
HEE EEES
% %
Signal Communications BVI HK$15,000,000 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited BB 15,000,000%% 76 B B HE R
SiCOM China Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Investment holding
B IR AR 1370 BB
SiCOM Europe Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Investment holding
B IR AR 1370 BEER
SiCOM Far East Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Investment holding
L IR A 1370 BB
SiCOM Japan Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Investment holding
B IR A 1370 BB

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H M 4 i 45 B 4w

Annual Report 2008 4 #i



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEAH =+ H ILFEE

15. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operation

Issued and fully
paid up ordinary

share capital/

registered capital

15. J* B S A w2 B0 (4

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital/
registered capital

held by the Company

Principal activities

HAAR A Z
T R BT RA
REMH S, A, REE A2
Pl Jg 2 1 44 7 T 585 H B REMMHE A WA EEEER
Directly Indirectly
HE LiEES
% %
Signal Communications Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100 Research and
Limited s 1,000%5 76 development and
T AR B BR A A sales and marketing
of audio and video
monitoring systems
PR R
W 5% B 8% Je T
S i A 41
TeleEye Europe Limited The United GBP100 - 95 Sales and marketing
Kingdom 1003754 of audio and video
B B monitoring systems
TR R
S5 i A 41
TeleEye (S) Pte Limited Republic of S$$1,000 - 51 Sales and marketing
Singapore 1,000/8T N3 7o of audio and video
TN monitoring systems
TR R
5 i A 4R
TeleEye Solutions Limited Hong Kong HK$10 - 100 Inactive
ERTES 10T w2
T H AR SR (DI The People’s US$130,000 = 100 Production, sales
A BR T (Note) (M7E) Republic 130,000£ 70 and marketing of
of China audio and video
(the “PRC”) monitoring systems
HHE N R 2R B RIBEER G L W
(M ) Be 55 I i 355 4

Annual Report 2008 4 #i
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4FAH =+ H ILFEE

15. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)

Note:  The company is registered in the form of a wholly foreign owned

enterprise.

15.

W B g 2 ) 2 B ()
Wk %l F DA G A S e e 2 O R

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

16. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

T 7S 4 BE A& 4 Ry AR 4F B 2 AT AT I (] 1 48R
I bR Ja 2 W A AR A 8 AT Z B RE R o

16. TR A R Z HE a5

The Group
AR

2008 2007
SEENE EFLE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T#s T
Cost of investment in an associate Wi 45 /S A 3 AR - 1,060
Share of post-acquisition losses JREE At s 4% e 488 - (1,060)

Details of the Group’s associate at 30 June 2007 were as follows:

Place of

Particulars of incorporation

Name of associate issued shares held and operation

W_EEFEEFEANAH=TH > KEHZHE

AFREEW R

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital

held by the Group

Principal activities

A 5 Z
sl Ml ar K AT B A T
Tk 02 W) 4 i LB AT A A R b B JEE/idza TR
CAMERIO Japan, 294 ordinary Japan 49% Sales and marketing
Incorporated shares of H 4 of audio and video
Yen 50,000 each monitoring systems
294 B4 BB THI {EL BB R AT
50,000 H B 7 i 1 L i 45 4 i

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H M 4 8 % Bt 24 % | Annual Report 2008 4 #



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEAH =+ H ILFEE

16. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED) 16. FAIE 2w Z HE2E (A1)
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s R A £ [ W5 N ) R BA T AR A R B
associate is set out below: B/
2008 2007
—EEAE SRTLE
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tl Fil It
Total assets M E - 642
Total liabilities AR - (1,30D)
- (659)

Group’s share of net assets of associate A £ (9B g v o m A TR - =
Loss for the year 4F i 1H - (72)
Group’s share of results of associate A A JSE IR A B 2 D Y

for the year G EH - =
In December 2007, the Group had disposed of the associate for a AZEELAE T ZH > AL RS
cash consideration of JPY294 equivalent to approximately HK$21. o] A B B A ARAE £5204 F E - A E AR

#1218 C °
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of results of H A 52 R 0 Aok S 42 Tl R A S5 R kB A D
the associate because the accumulated share of post-acquisition TG A o A SR 2 A5 1L A R A
losses equals the cost of investment in the associate. The amount B T 8 2N W) SR o AR TN B B RS e SRR A
of unrecognised share of the associate, extracted from the relevant B 2N W A A (R B% B W S W B0 A B A
management accounts of the associate, both for the year and IRH) ' -
cumulatively, are as follows:
2008 2007
ZREF)N\E —FF R
HK$°000 HK$’000
T TH#IT

Unrecognised share of loss o Tl R ) A i 45 ) 4 e 4R

of associate for the year — (35)
Accumulated unrecognised share ZRTR e w8 AN W 4 S W s 4R

of losses of associate - (280)

Annual Report 2008 4 #t | TeleEye Holdings Limited T % R #% &t f1 Bt 2 w] 13



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4FAH =+ H ILFEE

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

17. WAL E#E

The Group
A4
2008 2007
SRR\ S
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T#IT
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong i Dl | ) N 4,179 4,305

At the balance sheet date, all available-for-sale investments are

stated at fair value. Fair values of those investments have been

determined by reference to bid prices quoted in active markets.

WREEH > Pra it & &S A FE
E IR o %% BE 1~ E ) 275 05 B
T 5 T R B AR 1T

18. INVENTORIES 18. #8&
The Group
y:N |
2008 2007
—EEAE SEELE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T
Raw materials JE AL 2,592 3,362
Finished goods R 5,067 7,602
7,659 10,964
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19, WOHR 23k B 3L Al JE Wik
The Group
y:N |
2008 2007
—EEAE CEELE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T IT
Trade receivables O AT B 3K 6,457 4,482
Less: accumulated allowances W REHEE (116) (103)
6,341 4,379
Other receivables HAth, 18 i 2K 2,012 2,186
Total trade and other receivables R AT B 2 e JEC At R W K A R T 8,353 6,565

JA reicye Holdings Limited % W # 1 7 4 7 | Annual Report 2008 4 #i



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEAH =+ H ILFEE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19. M WL ok B L fib 1B WAG sk (#6)
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of A S B 2 B AN K B 2
allowance for doubtful debts at the balance sheet date prepared on MEGHIE 2 REAST BR AR (0 BR 2R B B ) R S o
the basis of payment due date of sales invoice: Hran | -
The Group
A5

2008 2007
ZREF)NF —EFTLEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T
Current B3 A5k 35 4,255 3,318
1 to 3 months overdue a1 =34 A 1,372 897
More than 3 months overdue 7 1 A 3| A 714 164
6,341 4,379
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its AERGTHEZEF FH=THZES

trade customers. The Group trade receivables are individually ) o A B T 1Y R AT HR SR T AR Il PR E B o

determined to be impaired.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired 76 391 AL Sl 0 DL P R UL MR 5K v R
The Group
AL H
2008 2007
ZREF)N\E —ERELE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#5T T#IT
1 to 3 months overdue a0 111 =31 A 1,372 897
More than 3 months overdue 78 11 2 36 H 714 164
2,086 1,061
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. AR A [H SNz 406 2R B 4 5 B S A AT A IR A 5

Annual Report 2008 4 #t | TeleEye Holdings Limited T % R #% &t f1 Bt 2 w] 15
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4FAH =+ H ILFEE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

19, W MRk B At IR Wk ()

The Group
AR

2008 2007
e It ~ i
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T#s T
Balance at beginning of the year SRR &5 R 103 66
Impairment losses recognised on receivables At Wi 3 TE #f 2 I {H 15 18 13 37
Balance at end of the year E S 116 103

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with a balance of HK$116,000 (2007:
HK$103,000) relate to customers that were in default. The
impairment recognised represents the difference between the
carrying amount of these trade receivables and the present value
of the expected liquidation proceeds. The Group does not hold

any collateral over these balances.

R R B A G0 5 R R U 00 HE i AR KA R
116,0004 76 (—ZFF L 4F : 103,000%70) -
T H B KB o T fife 58 W (E 48 5% 55 B U
M 1Y T T {1 B U U A T A5 R 7Y B
T 2 TR 0 22 o A 42 [ NI 0 gl % 5 4 R
FEA AT AT HEHR o

Ageing of impaired trade receivables BRGNS
The Group
A< £

2008 2007
ZRF)N\FE —EFTLEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#T T#E T
1 to 3 months overdue 8 111 231 H - 7
More than 3 months overdue i 7 A 3 116 96
116 103

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H M 4 8 % Bt 24 % | Annual Report 2008 4 #



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEAH =+ H ILFEE

20.

21.

22.

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 20. MW A ] 2 KO
The Group
ES N

2008 2007
ZRBNE ZERFLE
HK$’000 HK$'000
T 0 R
Trade account 2 5 M H - 14

The loan account is unsecured, bears interest at 1% per annum
and is repayable on demand. The trade account is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and the Group allows an average credit period of
45 days for sales made to the associate. The trade account at the
balance sheet date are aged within the credit period granted by

Group.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprises cash and short-term bank
deposits held by the Group and the Company with an original
maturity of three months or less. The deposits carry fixed interest

rate from 1.7% to 5.15% (2007: 4.7% — 4.8%).

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of
HK$2,392,000 (2007: HK$723,000). The following is an aged
analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet date prepared on

the basis of payment due date of supplier’s invoice:

21.

22.

B T 2y SRR AT - AR S 1% M H R R
A5 % o B 5 MR IE 5 MK A - R KRB &
A S B B T AR T R R 2P R B
W B45H - IREETEH 2 8 5 BRIERR Bt 1 A
FALEEPR T ZEEBA -

HATHR R BL&

SRAT &5 R S B 4 60 46 d AR 4R I B AR A T
A1 3 A B RE RS = AR A sk LA R 2 e
HHERAT A7 3K o A7 3K AE 1. 7% H5.15% (B E
LAE  4.7%%4.8%) 1 [ 52 FlRFHA A E -

JRE AT M 3 B A R A K 6L 4 TR A B 5 R
#K2,392,0005 6 (=& Z L 4F 1 723,000%
JG) o ARG H FE A e pE Ak 2 B A AT ROH
i 2 BEME G 2 MEAT IR SRR B 0 A N

The Group
A4 [

2008 2007
—RRNE SEELE
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#0 T
Current B39 £+t 3 1,830 619
1 to 3 months overdue 781 A1 2= 34 H 511 104
More than 3 months overdue 7 1] 76 A 3 H 51 -
2,392 723

The average credit period on purchases is 1 month.

Annual Report 2008 4 #i
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —F%/\4EAH =+ H ILFE

23. AMOUNTS DUE TO MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS
The Group

The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable

on demand.

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES
The Company

The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable

on demand.

23.

24.

W A5t A OB K I
L

AR T AR R RS R R R
72 o

JFE e b Jagg 2~ ] sk T
A H
% SR A B AR~ AN BB B OZE R B R

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. AR
Number of shares Share capital
Je oy 5 H JBeA
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZERERN\G —EELF ZRFN\F —EEZ LS
’000 ’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T SR Tl
Authorised: 20 /A

Ordinary shares of g I T {E0.0 1 T
HK$0.01 each 2 5 800,000 800,000 8,000 8,000

Issued and fully paid: AT MR A
At beginning of year ) 180,240 180,000 1,802 1,800
Exercise of share options AT e 1 E 60 240 1 2
At end of year R 180,300 180,240 1,803 1,802

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H M 4 8 % Bt 24 % | Annual Report 2008 4 #



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEAH =+ H ILFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

¢

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Scheme”)

The Pre-IPO Scheme was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 12 April 2001 to recognise the contribution of
executive directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries to the growth of the Group. The options granted
under the scheme grant the right to the holder to subscribe
for new ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.60 per
ordinary share and the maximum number of shares in
respect of which options might be granted under the scheme
was 14,400,000. The number of shares in respect of which
options might be granted to any individual was not permitted

to exceed 3,600,000.

Options might be granted without any initial payment.
Options granted are exercisable to the extent of an aggregate
total of 25%, 50%, 75% and 100% at anytime after 6 months,
18 months, 30 months and 42 months, respectively, from the
commencement of the trading of the shares of the Company
on the GEM, and have a duration of 10 years from their

respective vesting dates.

Upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM on
8 May 2001, no further options could be granted by the
Company under the Pre-IPO Scheme. The rights of the
holders of the share options granted prior thereto are not
affected and such options granted continue to remain valid

and exercisable in accordance with the terms of the scheme.

(i)

26. W BRERTH

9 JE I S e A S ) (T 49 JBE I B A S
#1)

AR aRBER —FE—4FENA +ZH
A A 2 — TE PR 5E ER AN IR A A I RE
wh ] > R DL AR A R K CH g A R 2
AT E KR BB A AR B 2 8 AR
2z BT R E E o AR R E H R
57 KA N\ RER AT 4% 45 i 3 78 10.60
W5 TT 5 A A ] 2R i o T AR R
wh B R T AR 2 R R RE U K 2 R
B0y #H £514,400,000% » Al $&% F 1%
Al N = 2 B B RE 22 1B 4y BB R m] A AR
3,600,000/ ©

Wi J5 M A I SR S AN AT AT 4 25 KT 2
T DL R AP SR Wl T 82 o B A ME A AR A
] B 7 Bl ZE AR B B BB AR > a4 Hl
EMAMEA S FAMA - =+ 1M1A &
P =8 A 2 % 2 AT AT IR | A 5 I
WF AT A G 3 A 1 A 48 3 2 25% -
50% ~ 75% 5 100% ° % % i A 1 i 4%
AIATAE 2 H WS IN A R e

HARNFRGR _%F%F—4FH1H/NH
TE R ZE A b T 4% > AR 9 TR I R A
FEH > A TS AR R
T 7E 6 DA AT 452 i B M 2 455 A B =2
A S S a2 B S R R
WKL FE O IR 2 IR REM A XA
R A F PLAT AR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —F%/\4EAH =+ H ILFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED) 26. JJBCHE ST S ()
(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Scheme”) (i) 18 JB B R RE St (38 B A 8 ik R 5t
(continued) #1) (#)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s TERPEFBAEE _EELEFEL EFEE
share options under the Pre-IPO Scheme during the years JNAEZS A = B OOR 4R 2 0 AR 9548 IR AT
ended 30 June 2007 and 2008: I I i 1 AR A ) 2 i AR 2 g )
4% :

Exercise Lapsed Lapsed
price Balance at during Balance at during Balance at
Date of grant per share 1 July 2006 the year 30 June 2007 the year 30 June 2008
REFFAE REFFLE REFFNE
tH—H REEA  ARZFH REEN  AR=TH
Bl AT ZHith BARM Z &tk BRM Z &tk

HK$ (Note)

BT Wzt

Directors of the Company

AR ZHES
Prof. Chan Chok Ki 12 April 2001 0.60 1,800,000 - 1,800,000 - 1,800,000
BRAF 2 B0 “ZEENA+H
Dr. Ma Chi Kit 12 April 2001 0.60 1,440,000 - 1,440,000 - 1,440,000
Bt “EL-HENA+ZH
Mr. Ho Ka Ho 12 April 2001 0.60 1,364,000 - 1,364,000 - 1,364,000
(EPE Sistea “EFZ-HENA+H

4,604,000 - 4,604,000 - 4,604,000
Employees of the Group 12 April 2001 0.60 2,056,000 — 2,056,000 (884,000) 1,172,000
AEEER “EREENAT+H

6,660,000 - 6,660,000 (884,000) 5,776,000
No options had been exercised since the date of grant. At 30 B 4% th H A R S e s I S AT o R =
June 2008, the number of shares in respect of which options FENAENHT =1 B R4 B AT % ik
had been granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme represents 3.2% w5 2 R RE 2 I BOE A5 3% B AR
(2007: 3.7%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that oA AT 3.2% (B EF L4 - 3.7%) ©
date.
Note:  These options lapsed upon the resignation of the grantees. BifaE - AR IR AE TR IR BEAL AR R -

80 TeleEye Holdings Limited T H M ¥ %t % B 2 ¥ | Annual Report 2008 4 #



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% it % Mt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEAH =+ H ILFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
(ii) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the

26. FEBEREREE ()
Gi) RZFF=4FTHZ T /NHRERPZH

“2003 Option Scheme”)

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 October 2003, the
2003 Option Scheme was adopted to recognise and motivate
the contribution of the employees and to provide incentives
and help the Company in retaining its existing employees
and recruiting additional employees for a term of ten years.
The board of directors of the Company may at its discretion
grant options to any employees, including executive and non-
executive directors, advisers, consultants, agents, contractors,
customers and suppliers of the Group to subscribe for shares
in the Company. Option may be granted at a consideration
of HK$1 and should be accepted within 5 business days from
the date of grant. The option granted is exercisable upon
acceptance of and payment of consideration by the grantee
and have a duration of 10 years from their respective vesting

dates.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted cannot exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company on 28 October 2003. No option shall be
granted to a grantee if the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be
granted under the 2003 Option Scheme in any twelve months
period up to and including the date of grant to such grantee
would exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company

for the time being in issue.

The subscription price shall not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Daily Quotation Sheets on the date of grant, which must
be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Daily Quotation Sheets for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant;
or (iii) the nominal value of a share. Without prejudice
to the generality of the above, the board of directors of
the Company may grant options in respect of which the

subscription price is fixed at different price.

JBRE ST ([ 2 AR IR M 3t 81 )
BEER —EE=4F+H -+ A BER
THEE S AN R BT A
PR HE T o 7 LA T 3R M Y OR B AR
g SR ADEASCE R
T S - B LA B B AL LA K
AT W B T 4E 2 BAME B o AT
= A W AT A AR B B R
(4 A 45 W 2 94T 8 o K JF 4T 3
o BLE R R R EE
A E 1) LA R AR A IR o A
AT LA AR L7t e 4% o M A 4R A
S T 2 Bk B AN o e R B A
92 0 e 7S B PR ARE 01 0 I > B AR
J7 AT AT B A RO A
578 B RS R BI04

M T IR RE 2 e m  BE - A5
e /AT e o2 S S B S i RN
HZEBEITREAZLI0% ° MTEAET] =
R HA ] B2 52 W TRRE T %R A% A
H (3% ) 1k > B8 1T B LR
PR = B IR T B TR Sl
TR 2 T RE AT A IR I T B AT 2
J Ay R > B A AR N R IR BB AT R
ARZ1% » RIAS BAS S G 4% 1 IR AE o

REEANE LR T = F 2 REmEE  G)
AN A A B AR RS A
TE 45 H O E R 2 o A8 > GDAS A A
iR R Tl = T A =
B H AR R 2 P A G
Py AE o 7 A FE L0z — ek R Al
o AL E) g ] 2 DL [ AE A
i 7 R i A . T AR RE o

Annual Report 2008 4 #t | TeleEye Holdings Limited T % R #% it f7 Bt 2 w]

81



82

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
(ii) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the

“2003 Option Scheme”) (continued)

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
share options under the 2003 Option Scheme during the
years ended 30 June 2007 and 2008:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4FAH =+ H ILFEE

26. i Jie b w1 (A)

Gi) R-FZF=Z4FTHZH/NHERMAZ
JBEHE T ([ =2 2 = A7 i I HE w1 3 1)
(%)

TR ERESE DR LAE R RN
FRH =1 HEFEE R AN "R
T T = AT IR T 4 2 e

B -
Exercise Exercised Exercised
price Balance at during Balance at during Balance at
Date of grant per share 1 July 2006 the year 30 June 2007 the year 30 June 2008
REZFNE REZRLE e 2 JC2
tA—H REER  AAZTH REER  ARZTH
it A AT Z Btk BT Z Btk i Z Btk
HK$
T
Directors of the Company
AR ZES
Prof. Chan Chok Ki 4 August 2004 0.145 900,000 — 900,000 — 900,000
BRAF B “EENENANHA
Dr. Ma Chi Kit 4 August 2004 0.145 720,000 - 720,000 - 720,000
RSt “ERLENA T H
Mr. Ho Ka Ho 4 August 2004 0.145 680,000 - 680,000 - 680,000
fREFSE ZEENENATH
2,300,000 - 2,300,000 - 2,300,000
Employees of the Group 4 August 2004 0.145 380,000 (240,000) 140,000 (60,000) 80,000
AR R ZEEPNENATH
2,680,000 (240,000) 2,440,000 (60,000) 2,380,000

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before
4 August 2004 (date of grant of the above options) was
HK$0.145. At 30 June 2008, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted under the 2003 Option
Scheme represents 1.3% (2007: 1.4%) of the shares of the

Company in issue at that date.

The 60,000 share options exercised during the year resulted
in the issue of 60,000 ordinary shares of the Company
and new share capital of HK$600 and share premium of
HK$8,100 (before issue expenses), as further detailed in note

25 to the financial statements.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H M 4 8 % Bt 24 % | Annual Report 2008 4 #
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0 5 3R B RE 25 — b RE Al R R R
17 18 2 60,0001 R i HE 25 3 5% 1760,000 /1%
AN ) 3 B K T AR 6005 T8 B Bk 43 Yk
8,1005 76 (R wH#E4T BH ) -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEAH =+ H ILFEE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
(ii) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the

“2003 Option Scheme”) (continued)

The weighted average closing price per share immediately

before the date on which the option for 60,000 shares was
exercised (i.e. 12 July 2007) was HK$0.42.

26. FEBEREREE ()
Gi) RZFF=4FTHZ T /NHRPZMH
JBERE A (T 22 = 4 B et 1 1)

(#0)

2 60,0008 Bk 0y 2 1 B HE 4T 48
H# (Bl =FZEELA+H) Mz
B BT Y i T A 450,425 0T ©

27. RESERVES 27. fffhi
Retained
Share profits/
premium (losses) Total
PRE8 A,
JB A4 Yai A2 (& 18) #st
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T IT T#T T#T
THE COMPANY VNN
At 1 July 2006 W oFEENELH—H 21,605 (1,412) 20,193
Issue of ordinary shares upon T AT 1 i e HEE IR % A7
exercise of share options A 7 i 33 - 33
Profit for the year A AR JE Y65 ) - 2,019 2,019
At 30 June 2007 A EFEEELHENH=TH 21,638 607 22245
Issue of ordinary shares upon T AT 1 i e HEE IR B A7
exercise of share options A7 i 8 - 8
Profit for the year A AR JE Y65 ) - 1,111 1,111
At 30 June 2008 M oFEFENENA=+H 21,646 1,718 23,364
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4FAH =+ H ILFEE

28. DEFERRED TAXATION 28.
The following are the major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

A% E i JH

A B AE ARG E RO A AR R ERERR 2
ZREBLIE () /R S S B R

years:
Accelerated Capitalised
tax development Tax
depreciation costs losses Total
o 228 5 3 B A
P HAA 025 s 45 At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T T T
THE GROUP AL
At 1 July 2006 R ZEENFEELEH —H 10 280 (290) -
(Credit)/charge to income statement Mgz R (GEA) kR (10) Q7) 37 =
At 30 June 2007 and 1 July 2007 A FEEFLESNH=1TH
K _ELZLHEELA—H - 253 (253) -
Charge/(credit) to income statement Y& %5 % 1 H0ER (FFA) 110 (92) 253 271
At 30 June 2008 A ZEFEFENFEARNHA=ZTH 110 161 = 271

At 30 June 2008, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$4,755,000 (2007: HK$7,467,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of such losses (2007: HK$1,446,000). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to the remaining unused tax losses of
HK$4,755,000 (2007: HK$6,021,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in the unrecognised tax losses
are losses of HK$1,292,000 (2007: HK$790,000) that will expire
in 2012 through 2013. The remaining tax losses may be carried

forward indefinitely.

At 30 June 2008, the Group has no other deductible temporary
differences (2007: HK$108,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary differences
as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against

which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEAH =+ H ILFEE

29.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate in a defined
contribution retirement scheme (“MPF Scheme”) registered under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under the
rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at rates specified
in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. No forfeited contributions are available to reduce

contributions payable in future years.

The employees of the subsidiary in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiary is required to contribute 8% of the
basic salary of its employees to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect

to the retirement benefit is to make the specified contribution.

In addition to the participation in the above retirement benefit
schemes, the subsidiary in the United Kingdom and the subsidiary
in Singapore are required to contribute, respectively, to National
Insurance Contributions and Central Provident Fund Scheme for
certain of its employees in the United Kingdom and Singapore
based on applicable rates in accordance with the relevant

government regulations.

The total costs charged to income statement of HK$753,000 (2007:
HK$651,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes

by the Group in respect of current accounting period.

29.
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LAY A o BRI AE S A B 2 HE
1 = B H AR B 4 B 7R $2 BRI S 2 2 B A )
FEB K o aE A Rt TS A 4R A
e wt #5243 T ZH R o AR 4 B S 4 AT A
IR A AR R A R 2 Rk

A 55 B R 2 BB s ) 2 R B B R
HR AR A wH# 2 R 8 > % wt E A B
JiF KEE o T B o~ W R i RO B2 R &
Z 8% A8 PR A A w3 A K o At b AR
PR I T 5 AR 4R B ZE A 4 E R -

bR 2 Bl AR AR A R w8 Ab o 43 B ik 4
KR n 3 2 B Jeg 2~ w28 AR 45 e B K T o 3
BN 22 124 - i 7 v Ll e A FLiR bl T R
Bl X 2 #7 T & B 43 Fill M National Insurance
Contributions X Central Provident Fund

Schemefit K

TE U 35 2 A 41 B 22 4B A AR 753,000% I8 (-
X LA 1 651,000% 70) A A £ A &
w300 T 1] e S ST B4R 22 AR o

TeleEye Holdings Limited T B Mt 4 J§ 45 B 2



30. OPERATING LEASES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 #%= —%F%/\4FAH =+ H ILFEE

30. REMHAZHE

The Group
A4

2008 2007

SRR\ S

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T#IT
Minimum lease payments made under A 7S A B T AR PR RS AR A
operating leases in respect of premises R 2E7E AT 2 AR

during the year HH %) FH 48 1,546 1,161

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

AT H > A5 BB A B 2 2 A TG
A8 R A0 T 2 7E R 2R S AT 2 B AR 4 A <

in respect of premises which fall due as follows: Z ARG G H AR
The Group
A< £ M

2008 2007
—gEAE  CFELE
HK$’000 HK$°000
e Tt
Within one year —EN 1,186 585
In the second to fifth year inclusive B AERE N (HRERWAAEMEIEIEN) 1,272 932
More than five years TR R 230 =
2,688 1,517

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for office premises. Leases are negotiated for an average of three

years and rentals are fixed for an average of three years.

The Company has no significant operating lease commitments at

the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS W% $it % bt ik

For the year ended 30 June 2008 # % ~F % /\MFEAH =+ H ILFEE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31. BE#ALRZ 5
The Group
A4
2008 2007
—gE\E  SEELE
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#T T#E T
Sales to an associate ) M 7 N A 6 64 150
Interest income from loan to an associate 2R H 44 T W 45 A /] Bk 2 FLE WA 2 3
Service fee to the City University 1o 39 T R R S AN e s 2 74 38
Scholarship donation to the City University [1] 3% i £ 1 t 4% B2 5 5 3K 66 -

CityU Enterprises Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of City
University, holds a 30% interest in Etin City Limited, a substantial

shareholder of the Company.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key

management during the year was as follows:

FEHEtin City Limited (472 &) 2 3 2R
Z ) 30%ME fi 2 I K A 2 A BR 4 ] A Ik i
KELZ 2 g s 7 o

FEAA B B 4K
g N A T A L AR B AR A 2 T <6
B/l

The Group
AL H

2008 2007
—RBAE EELE
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#5T T#T
Short-term benefits et A A | 4,777 4,777
Post-employment benefits A0 T 1% A 72 72
4,849 4,849

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance

of individuals and market trends.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

St 5 1Bt 2

RESULTS
Year ended 30 June
BENH=1THILEE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
ZERERNAgE ZERERAE ZEREANE ZERLE DRR)NE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt Tt T on T s Tt
Revenue A 30,458 27,492 37,356 46,635 62,898
(Loss)/profit before tax FRBLHT (k518) i F (911) (3,500) (209) 2,146 4,638
Income tax credit/(charge) PSR4, (G2 i) 21 = = = (620)
(Loss)/profit for the year AAERE (58) U (890) (3,500) (209) 2,146 4,018
Attributable to: DL A LA
Equity holders of the Company AN FEHERSFFA A (946) (3,284) (273) 2,087 3,997
Minority interests D BB HRORE 25 56 (216) 64 59 21
(890) (3,500) (209) 2,146 4,018
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
& KA
At 30 June
RAH=+H
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
CERTPUE BB RE EBBRNE BT LEFE ZFEFRNE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T Hs T FHs T T T T o TV T
Total assets MK 35,693 33,291 34,118 35,671 40,773
Total liabilities =L (3,902) (4,248) (5,334) (4,400) (5,577)
31,791 20,043 28,784 31,271 35,196
Equity attributable to equity Z/NGIL SRR PN
holders of the Company JRE A HE £ 31,878 29,339 29,032 31,483 35,361
Minority interests D B A 2 (87) (296) (248) (212) (165)
31,791 29,043 28,784 31,271 35,196
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